Arkansas

DHS / DCO

Office of Community Services

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual

Inquiries to:

Nancy Mixon, ESG Grants Analyst, 501-682-2617, Nancy.Mixon@dhs.arkansas.gov

Sandra Johnson, ESG Grants Analyst, 501-682-3679, Sandra.Johnson.DCO@dhs.arkansas.gov

Lurenda Duren, ESG Grants Analyst, 501-682-8713, Lurenda.Duren@dhs.arkansas.gov

ESG Team Email: DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy: Issuance Number: ESG 23-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual Issuance Date 01/27/2023

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: Policy Revision and Addition

Policy to be Removed	Date:	Policy to be Added:	Date:
ESG Table of Content None ESG Section 2.5.4	06/22 05/20	ESG Table of Content ESG Section 2.2.3.1 ESG Section 2.5.4	01/23 01/23 01/23

Summary of Changes:

The ESG Policy and Procedure Manual -Revisions have been made throughout the ESG Policy Manual changing the DCO Office of Community Services to the DCO Office of Community Grants Services. OCS has merged with the Office of Program Policy and Development within the Division of County Operations. The Section is now called The Office of Program Policy and Community Grants Services.

ESG Policy Section 2.2.3.1 is a new section incorporating the right to appeal a denial of funding. The appeal must be made within 15 calendar days from the date on the denial notice.

ESG Policy Section 2.5.4 has been revised to clarify when an agency can bill for expenses outside of the billing period.

Table of Content – has been updated to reflect changes.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679 Aicha Fofana, Grants Analyst- 501-683-2119

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy: Issuance Number: ESG 22-03

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual

Issuance Date 10-01-22

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2023 Fair Market Rent)

Policy to be Removed	Date:	Policy to be Added:	Date:
ESG FMR	10/01/21	ESG FMR	10/01/22

Summary of Changes:

The FY 2023 ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2023 Fair Market Rent) tables have been issued and available for use with applicants effective October 1, 2022.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679 Aicha Fofana, Grants Analyst- 501-683-2119

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy: Issuance Number: ESG 22-02

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual Issuance Date 06/10/2022

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG Policy Revisions and Additions

Policy to be Removed	Date:	Policy to be Added:	Date:
ESG Section 2.2.5	5/2020	ESG Section 2.2.5 ESG Section 2.2.6.1 ESG Section 2.2.7	06/10/22 06/10/22 06/10/22
ESG Section 4.2.2.4	5/2020	ESG Section 4.2.2.4	06/10/22
ESG Section 4.2.3.3	5/2020	ESG Section 4.2.3.3	06/10/22
Table of Content	5/2020	Table of Content	06/10/22

Summary of Changes:

ESG Policy Section 2.2.5 has been revised to add the additional milestone for when funds are available for use in the IDIS system.

ESG Policy Section 2.2.6.1 is a new section incorporating a review period of the sub-grant recipient's ESG grant award to determine if funds should be reallocated to ensure funds are used on ESG eligibles by the end of grant period.

ESG Policy Section 2.2.7 is a new section incorporating procedures to ensure funds are completely obligated in the IDIS system.

ESG Policy Section 4.2.2.4- has been revised to clarify prior approval is required before expending of funds if costs are not included in the agency approved budget.

ESG Policy Section 4.2.3.3- has been revised to add in this section the re-evaluation of income for continuous clients assistance within the homelessness prevention component.

Table of Content – has been updated.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy: Issuance Number: ESG 22-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual Issuance Date 04/29/2022

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG-IL 30 and 50% (HUD FY 2022 Income Limit for Regular and COVID)

Policy to be Removed	Date:	Policy to be Added:	Date:
ESG IL-Appendix 3 ESG IL-Appendix 7	04/01/21 04/01/21	ESG IL-Appendix 3 ESG IL-Appendix 7	04/18/22 04/18/22

Summary of Changes:

The FY 2022 ESG-IL (HUD FY 2022 Income Limits 30% and 50%) tables have been issued and available for use with applicants effective April 18, 2022.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Directive Issuance Number: ESG-21-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Issuance Date: March 9, 2021

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG COVID-19 - Revision To Hotel/Motel Stay

To assist an individual or family who is homeless and there is no shelter or bed space available or if quarantine is required due to COVID, the number of days for a hotel/motel voucher using ESG COVID funding is being increased up to a maximum of 10 days. If it is determined due to quarantine or COVID-19 illness that additional days beyond 10 are needed, a request must be sent to the DCO/Office of Community services at DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov for review and approval. This policy change only applies to the ESG COVID-19 funding and is effective immediately upon issuance of this Directive.

The Case Manager must be working with the individual or family to find appropriate shelter. The narrative must be provided along with documentation of the cost and associated payment when submitting the invoice for reimbursement. The On-site file must also include the Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.

If you have any questions regarding this requirement, please email the ESG Team.

Inquires to: <u>DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov</u>

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy: Issuance Number: ESG 21-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual

Issuance Date 09/23/21

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2022 Fair Market Rent)

Date:	Policy to be Added:	Date:
10/01/20	ESG FMR	10/01/21

Summary of Changes:

The FY 2022 ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2022 Fair Market Rent) tables have been issued and available for use with applicants effective October 1, 2021.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2616 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy: Issuance Number: ESG 20-02

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual Issuance Date October 12, 2020

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2021 Fair Market Rent)

Policy to be Removed	Date:	Policy to be Added:	Date:
ESG FMR	10/01/19	ESG FMR	10/01/20

Summary of Changes:

The FY 2021 ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2021 Fair Market Rent) tables have been issued and are available for use when determining eligibility effective October 1, 2020.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Form: Issuance Number: ESG 20-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual

Issuance Date 10/1/20

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG Regular / ESG COVID-19 Timesheet & Instructions

Form to be Removed	Date:	Form to be Added:	Date:
ESG Timesheet & Instructions	12/2019	ESG Regular/COVID Timesheet & Instructions	October 1, 2020

Summary of Changes:

The ESG Timesheet has been revised to capture an employee's program hours other than ESG and ESG COVID hours. The timesheet has to reflect the time distribution of total number of Case Management and non-Case Management Activity hours an employee worked during the period reimbursement is being requested. This is a HUD requirement.

The revised ESG Regular/COVID timesheet should be used effective October 1, 2020 and will be submitted with both the ESG regular and COVID invoice. The first submission will be in November when submitting the October 2020 invoice.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy: Issuance Number: ESG 19-05

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual Issuance Date 08/31/20

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG Policy Revisions and Additions

Policy to be Removed	Date:	Policy to be Added:	Date:
ESG Section 4.2.5	May 2020	ESG Section 4.2.5	August 4, 2020
		Appendix 7 -ESG COVID 50% Income Limit	August 4, 2020
		Appendix 8 – COVID Attestation Statement	August 4, 2020
Appendix 9 Documentation Required for Invoicing	September 2018	Appendix 9 – Documentation Required For Invoicing	August 4, 2020

Summary of Changes:

ESG Policy Section 4.2.5 has been revised expanding the use of Administrative funds in accordance with the ESG regulations.

Appendix 7- The ESG COVID-19 50% Income Limit Chart for Homelessness Prevention has been added. Agencies will receive the charts specific to the counties served from the Grants Analyst.

ESG Policy Transmittal 19-05 08/31/20 Page 2

Appendix 8 – An Attestation Station has been developed for agencies to attest that their agency has not requested or received reimbursement from any other sources for expenses submitted for reimbursement under ESG COVID-19 funding authorized under the CARES Act.

Appendix 9 - The "Documentation Required for Invoicing" guide has been revised to clarify that a copy of the lease agreement should be provided as documentation when assisting clients with Financial Assistance in the components of Rapid Re-Housing and Homelessness Prevention.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2616 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Directive Issuance Number: ESG-19-04

Issuance Date 08/21/20

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG COVID-19 -Use of Funding

This policy directive provides guidance on the Use of ESG COVID-19 funding as authorized under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES ACT), Public Law 116-136 and identify the areas where ESG policy and procedures are different from the regular ESG program.

The purpose of the COVID-19 funding is to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus pandemic among individuals and families who are homeless or receiving homeless assistance; and to support additional homeless assistance and homelessness prevention activities to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19.

In addition to the following program requirements below, the procedures in the Emergency Solutions Grant Policy Manual will also be followed when determining eligibility for use of the funding.

I. Restriction on CARES Act Funds

The funds under this Agreement may only be used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, among individuals and families who are homeless or receiving homeless assistance, and to support additional homeless assistance and homelessness prevention activities to mitigate the impacts created by coronavirus. People experiencing homelessness shall not be required to receive treatment or perform any other prerequisite activities as a condition for receiving assistance.

II. Serving Youth Who Lack 3rd Party Documentation or Live in Unsafe Situations

Notwithstanding any contrary requirements under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act or 24 CFR part 576, youth aged 24 and under who seek assistance (including shelter, services or rental assistance) shall not be required to provide third-party documentation that they meet the homeless definition in 24 CFR 578.3 as a condition for receiving assistance; and unaccompanied youth aged 24 and under (or families headed by youth aged 24 and under) who have an unsafe primary nighttime residence and no safe alternative to that residence shall be considered homeless for purposes of assistance provided by any private nonprofit organization whose primary mission is to provide services to youth aged 24 and under and families headed by youth aged 24 and under.

III. Match Requirements

The ESG COVID-19 funds are **exempt** from ESG match requirements, including 24 CFR 576.201.

IV. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)

Agencies who are recipeints of COVID-19 funding must enter client information in the HMIS system. Pulaski County Government is the HMIS provider. Funding for each agency utilizing the HMIS will be paid directly to the HMIS provider. Agencies utilizing compatible systems are paid directly.

V. ESG Income Limit – Homelessness Prevention

The COVID-19 ESG Program interim rule limits eligibility for homelessness prevention assistance to individuals and families with incomes that do not exceed 50 percent of Area Median Income (AMI).

VI. Coverage Period for Billing

Agencies approved for ESG Covid-19 funding can bill for eligible expenses not previously reimbursed by any other source retroactive to March 31, 2020. Supporting documentation must be provided as outlined in the ESG policy manual and in this directive. This includes the completion of the attached Emergency Solutions Grant COVID-19 Reimbursement Request Attestion Statement.

DHS will notify agencies of any changes or new requirements upon receipt from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

Inquires to: <u>DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov</u>

Nancy Mixon, Grants Analyst – 501-682-2617 Lurenda Duren, Grants Analyst – 501-682-8713 Sandra Johnson, Grants Analyst – 501-682-3679

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Issuance Number: ESG 19-03

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual Issuance Date: May 6, 2020

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: Revision to Appendix 6 – Form ESG IL

Form to be Removed	Date:	Form to be Added:	Date:
Appendix 6 – Form ESG-IL	April 24, 2019	Appendix 6 – Form ESG-IL	April 24, 2020

Summary of Changes:

HUD has released new 30% Income Limit thresholds for the ESG Program. These income limits became effective on April 01, 2020.

Please remove the indicated Form from your manual and replace with the Form provided with this Manual Transmittal.

This form is for reference only. An electronic copy of the Form for actual use will be provided to each agency for your specific counties.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Issuance Number: ESG 19-02

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual Issuance Date: January 2, 2020

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2020 Fair Market Rent)

Form to be Removed	Date:	Form to be Added:	Date:
None		ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2020 FMR)	10/1/2019
None			

Summary of Changes:

The FY 2020 ESG-FMR (HUD FY 2020 Fair Market Rent) tables have been issued and available for use with applicants effective January 2020.

Please add this form to your ESG Policy Manual.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Issuance Number: ESG 19-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual Issuance Date: December 31, 2019

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: Revision to ESG-TS (ESG Case Management Time Sheet)

Form to be Removed	Date:	Form to be Added:	Date:
ESG-TS	10/2018	ESG-TS	12/31/2019

Summary of Changes:

The ESG-TS (ESG Case Management Timesheet) has been revised to include a section to identify other program hours if an agency employee is not 100% ESG. Use of this form should begin immediately.

Please remove the current form from your manual and replace with the attached revised form.

Inquiries to: The ESG Team (DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov)

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Issuance Number: ESG 18-02

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual Issuance Date: June 19, 2019

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: Revision to Appendix 6 – Form ESG IL

Section to be Removed	Date:	Section to be Added:	Date:
Appendix 6 – Form ESG-IL	April 24, 2019	Appendix 6 – Form ESG-IL	April 24, 2019

Summary of Changes:

HUD has released new 30% Income Limit thresholds for the ESG Program. These income limits became effective on April 24, 2019.

Please remove the indicated Form from your manual and replace with the Form provided with this Manual Transmittal.

This form is for reference only. An electronic copy of the Form for actual use was provided via email in April.

Inquiries to:

ESG Team, DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Issuance Number: ESG 18-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual Issuance Date: October 22, 2018

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: Revision to Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual

Section to be Removed	Date:	Section to be Added:	Date:
(none)	(none)	Appendix 6 - Forms	October 22, 2018

Summary of Changes:

ESG 2018-19 sub-grant recipients are required to provide specific forms with each ESG invoice for the 2018-2019 year. See Appendix 6 for the list of required forms.

Please place this Manual Transmittal sheet at the front of the Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual.

Insert Appendix 6, along with the attached forms, at the end of the Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual.

These forms are for reference only. Electronic copies of all forms for actual use have already been provided via email during the previous week.

Inquiries to:

ESG Team, DHS.ESG.Team@dhs.arkansas.gov

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Issuance Number: ESG 17-02

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual Issuance Date: December 01, 2017

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: Revision to Section 2.5.2, Monthly Invoices

Section to be Removed	Date:	Section to be Added:	Date:
Section 2.5.2, p. 10	07/17/2017	Section 2.5.2, p. 10	12/01/2017

Summary of Changes:

The Policy Manual requires ESG sub-grant recipients to provide a printed statistical report from HMIS with each monthly invoice. It also requires an emailed CSV file that DHS-DCO-OCS staff can upload into eCART.

HUD has replaced eCART with SAGE, and sub-grant recipients can now upload CSV files from HMIS to SAGE. As a result of HUD's actions, we no longer require printed HMIS reports or emailed CSV files, and Section 2.5.2 of the Arkansas Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual has been revised accordingly. We are also removing the Budget Reconciliation Form requirement.

Please remove the indicated page(s) from your manual and replace with the page(s) provided with this Manual Transmittal.

Inquiries to:

Nancy Mixon, (501) 682-2617, Nancy.Mixon@dhs.arkansas.gov

Lurenda Duren, (501) 682-8713, Lurenda. Duren@dhs.arkansas.gov

Sandra Johnson, (501) 682-3679, Sandra Johnson@dhs.arkansas.gov

Zamien Gilbert, (501) 682-8716, Zamien. Gilbert@dhs.arkansas.gov

Rev. 10/2020

Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of County Operations

Policy Issuance Number: ESG 17-01

Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual Issuance Date: November 01, 2017

From: Mary Franklin, Director Expiration Date: Until Superseded

Subj: Revision to Section 4.2.2.4, *Shelter Operations*

Section to be Removed	Date:	Section to be Added:	Date:
Section 4.2.2.4, pp. 37-38	07/17/2017	Section 4.2.2.4, pp. 37-38	11/01/2017

Summary of Changes:

After clarification from HUD, the Utilities portion of Section 4.2.2.4 of the Arkansas Emergency Solutions Grant Policy and Procedures Manual has been revised.

Please remove the indicated page(s) from your manual and replace with the page(s) provided with this Manual Transmittal.

Inquiries to:

Nancy Mixon, (501) 682-2617, Nancy.Mixon@dhs.arkansas.gov

Lurenda Duren, (501) 682-8713, Lurenda. Duren@dhs.arkansas.gov

Sandra Johnson, (501) 682-3679, Sandra Johnson@dhs.arkansas.gov

Zamien Gilbert, (501) 682-8716, Zamien. Gilbert@dhs.arkansas.gov

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Table of Contents

Section	1	The Em	ergency Solutions Grant Program in Arkansas	1
	1.1	Purpos	e	1
	1.2	Contro	lling Statutes, Regulations and Authority	2
	1.3	Compli	ance with the State ESG Policy and Procedures Manual and Federal Regulations $$	3
Section	n 2	The ES	G Sub-Grant	4
	2.1	Eligible	Applicants	4
	2.2	The Ap	plication Process	5
		2.2.1	Application Screening	5
		2.2.2	Evaluation of Applications	5
		2.2.3	Sub-Grant Funding Decisions	5
		2.2.3.1	Sub-Grant Funding Appeal Right	5
		2.2.4	Training Workshop	5
		2.2.5	Effective Date of Award	5
		2.2.6	Award Performance Period	6
		2.2.6.1	Sub-Grant Recipient's Performance Review Period	6
		2.2.7	Obligation of Funds in IDIS (Integrated Disbursement and Information System)	6
	2.3	ESG Ma	atch Requirement	7
		2.3.1	Unmatched Sub-Grant Funds	8
	2.4	ESG Sul	b-Grant Budget	9
	2.5	Invoice	s and Reimbursement	10
		2.5.1	Advances	10
		2.5.2	Monthly Invoices	10
		2.5.3	Required Signatories	10
		2.5.4	Invoice Billing Periods	11
	2.6	Record	S	12
	2.7	Standa	ard Policies and Procedures	13
		2.7.1	The Coordinated Entry System	13
		2.7.2	Written ESG Standards	13
		2.7.3	Participation in HMIS	15
	2.8	Compl	iance Monitoring	16
	2.9	Sanctio	ons for Non-Compliance	17

	2.9.1	• •	nt of ESG Funds				
Section 3	2.9.2 Enviro		oliance Sanctions Appealview				
Section 4			ement				
4.1			articipants				
7.1	4.1.1		ting Homelessness or Risk				
4.2							
1.2	4.2.1	_	Program Services and Activities				
		4.2.1.1	Street Outreach: Essential Services				
				25			
				26			
			-	26			
			- ,	vices26			
				27			
			·	ns 27			
	4.2.2	Emerger	y Shelters (ES)				
		4.2.2.1	, Minimum Standards for Emergency Sł				
		4.2.2.2	Essential Services				
			Case Management	28			
			Child Care	29			
			Education Services	29			
			Employment Assistance / Job	Training 30			
			Outpatient Health Services	30			
				31			
			Life Skills Training	31			
			Mental Health Services	32			
			Substance Abuse Treatment	Services 32			
			Transportation Services	33			
			Services for Special Populatio	ns 33			
		4.2.2.3	Renovation, Rehabilitation or Convers	ion34			
			Renovation	34			
			Rehabilitation	34			
			Conversion	35			

	4.2.2.4	Shelter	Operations	35
			Maintenance	35
			Rent	36
			Security	36
			Fuel	36
			Insurance	36
			Utilities	37
			Food	37
			Furnishings	37
			Equipment	38
			Supplies	38
			Hotel/Motel Vouchers	38
4.2.3	Rapid Re	-Housing	g (RR) and Homelessness Prevention (HP)	38
	4.2.3.1		Rapid Re-Housing and Homelessness Prevention Eligibility	40
	4.2.3.2		RR and HP Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services	41
			Housing Search and Placement	42
			Moving Costs	42
			Application Fees	41
			Security Deposits	41
			Last Month's Rent	41
			Utility Deposits	42
			Utility Payments	42
			Housing Stability Case Management	42
			Mediation	43
			Legal Services	43
	4.2.3.3	RR and	HP Rental Assistance	44
			Assistance with Rental Arrears	45
	4.2.3.4	Homele	essness Prevention Income Limits	45
4.2.4	HMIS			46
	Eligible (Costs		46
4.2.4				
Ineligik	· ·			

4.3

Appendix 1 – Continuums of Care in	n Arkansas	50
Appendix 2 – Minimum Habitability	Standards for Emergency Shelters	51
	Access	51
	Space and Security	51
	Interior Air Quality	51
	Water Supply	51
	Sanitary Facilities	51
	Thermal Environment	51
	Illumination and Electricity	51
	Food Preparation	51
	Sanitary Conditions	51
	Fire Safety	52
Minimum Standards for Em	nergency Shelters	53
Appendix 3 - ESG Income Limits		55
Appendix 4 – Minimum Habitability	Standards for Permanent Housing	57
Appendix 5- ESG Monitoring Guide		59
Appendix 6 – Required ESG Forms		60
Appendix 7 – ESG 50% COVID Income	Limits	60-92
Appendix 8- Reimbursement Reques	t Attestation Statement	97
Appendix 9- Documentation Require	d Form for Invoicing	98

Section 1 The Emergency Solutions Grant Program in Arkansas

1.1 Purpose

The Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program is designed to end homelessness. Towards that end, it has four main components:

- **Street Outreach**, which funds engagement with unsheltered homeless individuals and families
- **Emergency Shelter**, which funds increased access to emergency shelters and improves shelter quality,
- **Rapid Re-Housing**, which funds the rapid rehousing of homeless individuals and families and provides financial stabilization, and
- **Homelessness Prevention**, which prevents at-risk individuals and families from becoming homeless.

Two other components, Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and Administration, facilitate data collection and program management.

Each component of ESG contains specific activities that may be paid for using ESG funds as long as certain requirements are met. This Policy and Procedures Manual outlines the Federal and State requirements of the ESG program and, where allowed by law, prioritizes specific ways to address homelessness in Arkansas. It is the primary resource for implementing projects funded by Arkansas ESG sub-grants, but it is not the only resource needed to successfully administer such projects.

1.2 Controlling Statutes, Regulations and Authority

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) awards ESG grants to the State of Arkansas (the State) through the Department of Human Services' Division of County Operations/Office of Community Grants Services (OCGS), and OCGS distributes those funds to areas of need throughout the State by awarding ESG sub-grants in accordance with Federal regulations as described in Section 2 of this manual.

The ESG Program in Arkansas is administered by OCGS under the provisions of

- Arkansas statutory authority;
- All applicable local, state, and federal laws;
- The Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act of 1987, Title IV, Subtitle B, as amended (42 U.S.C. 11371 *et seq.*);
- The HUD regulations found at 24CFR Part 576;
- The Uniform Administrative Requirements 2 CFR 200;
- The requirements of this Policy and Procedures Manual;
- The terms and conditions of ESG sub-grant agreements; and
- Any subsequent HUD and/or OCGS Policy Memos, Regulations, Communications, and guidance.

1.3 Compliance with the State ESG Policy and Procedures Manual and Federal Regulations

ESG sub-grant recipients are required to comply with the most current version of this Policy and Procedures Manual and Federal regulations as a condition of each sub-grant award.

The State has flexibility in certain areas of administering the ESG Program and may impose more rigorous standards than those required by HUD. For example, HUD regulations allow multiple activities under the HMIS and Administration components of ESG, but the State of Arkansas limits the budgets to these components and intends for them to be used primarily for annual licensing fees and travel to Little Rock for mandatory ESG trainings. In any instances where the Arkansas ESG Policy and Procedures Manual differs from the HUD Regulations found at 24CFR 576, sub-grant recipients must both minimally meet HUD standards and follow the Arkansas ESG Policy and Procedures Manual where more rigorous requirements have been introduced. Sub-grant recipients are encouraged to contact OCGS with questions or for assistance navigating this Policy and Procedures Manual.

Section 2 The ESG Sub-Grant

2.1 Eligible Applicants

Any Arkansas unit of general purpose, local government or private, secular or faith-based nonprofit organization (NPO) may apply for an ESG sub-grant through the DHS DCO/OCGS application process. However, in order to be eligible for consideration of a grant, all requirements discussed in Section 2 of this policy manual must be met.

All applicants must consult with, and be a member in good standing of, the OCGS-recognized Continuum(s) of Care operating within the applicant's area of service. Continuums of Care recognized by OCGS for this Policy and Procedures Manual are listed in Appendix 1.

All NPOs receiving an ESG sub-grant must be governed by a Board of Directors with a minimum of three members that either includes a formerly homeless person or else actively solicits input on issues before the Board from homeless individuals, formerly homeless individuals or persons at risk of homelessness. The Board of Directors must meet at least once quarterly. Quarters for the ESG Program are October – December, January – March, April – June, and July – September, regardless of the fiscal year of the sub-grant recipient. NPOs receiving an ESG sub-grant must operate under the day-to-day supervision of an Executive Director and have at least one paid employee.

In addition to the requirements for a secular NPO, faith-based NPOs receiving an ESG subgrant must agree to provide assistance that is free of religious instruction, not discriminate against or give preference to any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of religion, and not discriminate against or give preference to any person applying for assistance on the basis of religion.

If the faith-based NPO engages in explicitly religious activities, including activities that involve overt religious content such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization, they must be performed outside of any part of the ESG activities.

The Application Process

ESG sub-grants are available annually, subject to funding availability, at dates and times announced by OCGS through the Public Notification process of the State.

2.2.1 Application Screening

All correctly completed applications submitted by eligible applicants in accordance with the published requirements for the applicable grant cycle will be screened against application criteria provided with the application form by an *ad hoc* Application Committee appointed by the OCGS Assistant Director.

2.2.2 Evaluation of Applications

Applications deemed administratively complete by the *ad hoc* Application Committee will be evaluated against ESG Program requirements by the OCGS ESG staff. The ESG staff will make funding recommendations to the OCGS Assistant Director based upon the activities proposed in the application, the regional needs in the applicants' service areas, past OCGS sub-grant performance history (if previously funded through any OCGS Program) and funding availability.

2.2.3 Sub-Grant Funding Decisions

After consideration of staff recommendations, the OCGS Assistant Director will make final ESG sub-grant funding decisions and notify all applicants of the decisions.

2.2.3.1 Sub-Grant Funding Appeal Right

An Agency has the right to appeal the denial of application for funding. The Appeal must be made in writing to the Director of the Division of County Operations within 15 calendar days of the denial date on the notice. The Director will issue a final decision in writing within 30 calendar days after the receipt of written appeal.

2.2.4 Training Workshop

Prior to the start of the sub-grant performance period, OCGS will hold a mandatory training workshop to discuss sub-grant requirements. Failure to attend this workshop will be considered noncompliance and may prevent issuance of the sub-grant.

2.2.5 Effective Date of Award

ESG sub-grants require signature by a representative of DHS/DCO and the Executive Director of the sub-grant recipient to become fully executed. When fully executed, the sub-grant awards are effective as of the date indicated with the DHS/DCO signature. Funds are available for use:

- After a budget has been approved by OCGS;
- After the sub-grant award agreement has been fully executed;
- After the start of the sub-grant's performance period;
- After the Environmental Review referenced in Section 3 has been completed; and

• Funds are fully obligated in the IDIS System.

Expenses incurred prior to the completion of any of the above five milestones will not be reimbursed and may result in cancellation of the sub-grant, unless approved in writing by OCGS.

2.2.6 Award Performance Period

Unless otherwise stated in the sub-grant agreement, the performance period for each ESG sub-grant is October 01 of the year that the sub-grant is issued through September 30 of the following year.

Sub-grant recipients must provide services to homeless individuals and families for at least the period during which ESG funds are provided. If there are changes in occupancy or services provided during the grant period from what was outlined in the sub-grant agreement, the sub-grant recipients must notify OCGS within 30 days of the change.

2.2.6.1 Sub-Grant Recipient's Performance Review Period

In the third- and sixth month of the grant award period, the DCO/OCGS team will review the expenditures of sub-grant recipients to determine if funding should be reallocated to ensure that funds are expended in full to meet the needs of eligible individuals by the end of the grant period.

2.2.7 Obligation of Funds In IDIS (Integrated Disbursement and Information System)

The following steps will be taken to ensure that funding has been properly obligated in the IDIS system:

- DCO/OCGS will submit to the DCO Finance Team the approved grant award for each sub-grant recipient by components.
- DCO Finance Team will enter the awards into the IDIS system.
- DCO Finance Team will notify DCO/OCGS team that funds have been obligated into the IDIS System.
- Upon notification, DCO/OCGS will verify that all funds have been obligated as awarded in IDIS and notify the DCO Finance Team of the action.

2.3 ESG Match Requirement

Sub-grant recipients must match ESG funding with a one to one, or 100%, match from other sources. The match may originate from private sources or from local, state or non-ESG federal sources, as long as the laws governing the public monies do not prohibit such a use and as long as the ESG sub-grant was not used as match for the other public funds.

Matching funds may be used only once. Funds used to match a previous ESG grant may not be re-used to match a subsequent ESG sub-grant. Funds that have been used as match for any other grant cannot also be used as the ESG match.

Matching funds can be cash or in-kind contributions and must be provided after the date that HUD signs the grant agreement. Whether cash or in-kind, the match must meet all ESG requirements and must be certified by the sub-grant recipient's Executive Director on the approved OCGS ESG Match Certification Form.

Match may be calculated in the following ways:

- 1. *Cash contributions*: Calculate the cash expended for allowable costs under the ESG program from a source that meets the match requirements listed above;
- 2. Non-cash contributions: Calculate the value of any real property, equipment, goods, or services contributed to the sub-grant recipient's ESG program, provided that if the sub-grant recipient had to pay for them with grant funds, the costs would have been allowable. Noncash contributions m ay also include the fair market value of any real property donated to the sub-grant recipient after the date that HUD signs the grant agreement with the State.
 - a. To determine the value of any donated material or building, or of any lease, the sub-grant recipient must use a method reasonably calculated to establish the fair market value.
 - b. To determine the value of any donated services, the sub-grant recipient must value the donated time at the prevailing minimum wage except when volunteers perform duties that are professional in nature. Examples of professional services would include donated legal services, medical or mental health services, engineering services, etc...

For volunteered professional services, the sub-grant recipient may use the hourly rate that the volunteer charges as a professional. If an attorney provides

pro bono legal services to the sub-grant recipient, and that attorney's customary billable rate is \$150/hour, then each hour of the attorney's pro bone service may be valued at \$150. Use this approach only for professional services. If that same attorney volunteered time to paint the shelter or mow the lawn, then the value of those volunteered hours would be calculated at the prevailing minimum wage.

- c. Some noncash contributions are real property, equipment, goods or services that, if the sub-grant recipient had to pay for them with grant funds, the payments would have been indirect costs. Matching credit for these contributions may be given only if the sub-grant recipient has established, along with its regular indirect cost rate, a special rate for allocating to individual projects or programs the value of those contributions.
- 3. Costs paid by program income: Costs paid by program income may be counted as match only if they are eligible ESG costs that supplement the sub-grant recipient's current ESG program.

2.3.1 Unmatched Sub-Grant Funds

Failure to provide properly documented match will require repayment of all unmatched reimbursements.

2.4 ESG Sub-Grant Budget

After selection in accordance with Section 2.2.2, each ESG sub-grant recipient must propose a budget based on the actual amount awarded, and that budget must be approved by OCGS prior to any reimbursable expenditure. Reimbursement will not be made for activities that are not specified in an approved budget even though such activities may be classified as eligible activities under the ESG program and this Policy and Procedures Manual.

Requests for funding adjustments between eligible activities under the same ESG component may be made to OCGS in writing, either through a formal letter or e-mail to the Assistant Director of OCGS. Budget adjustment approval will be provided in a formal letter or email from the OCGS Assistant Director.

Requests for funding adjustments between eligible activities under different ESG components (which are described more fully in Sections <u>4.2.1</u>, <u>4.2.2</u>, <u>4.2.3</u>, <u>4.2.4</u>, <u>4.2.5</u> and <u>4.2.6</u>) are prohibited.

2.5 Invoices and Reimbursement

The ESG sub-grant is a reimbursement grant. Funds must be expended on eligible activities for eligible program participants in accordance with Federal regulations and the policies in this manual and then invoiced to OCGS for reimbursement.

2.5.1 Advances

The Director of the Division of County Operations may, at the request of the Assistant Director of OCGS, approve advance payments in extraordinary situations. Sub-grant recipients may contact OCGS for more information.

2.5.2 Monthly Invoices

Monthly submission of an invoice is a mandatory requirement of the ESG sub-grant. If no reimbursement is requested for a month, the sub-grant recipient must submit an invoice for zero dollars. This practice facilitates invoice tracking by OCGS and helps to flag invoices that are not delivered or not processed. Failure to submit a monthly invoice is considered noncompliance and will result in sanctions as specified in Section 2.9.

Unless otherwise instructed by OCGS, invoices are due by the 10th day of the month following the monthly billing period noted on the invoice and must be submitted on approved OCGS forms. Each invoice must include the following five elements:

- 1. An original Expenditures and Funds Request Form signed by the Executive Director of the sub-grant recipient in blue ink;
- 2. A Match Certification Form signed by the Executive Director of the sub-grant recipient;
- 3. A Monthly Progress and Statistical Information Report reviewed and signed by the DHS County Administrator;
- 4. Upload of the monthly Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) as a CSV file to SAGE; and
- 5. Documentation of the charges and payments for which reimbursement is being requested.

Acceptable forms of documentation vary by service or expense activity and are discussed in detail under the ESG component and eligible services and activities in <u>Section 4.2</u> of this manual.

2.5.3 Required Signatories

Invoices requesting reimbursement must be signed by the Executive Director of the subgrant recipient and counter-signed by a sub-grant recipient representative who is not authorized to cash checks.

2.5.4 Invoice Billing Periods

Invoices may request reimbursement for expenses outside of the billing period on the Invoice Form with the following exceptions:

- Expenses and Expenditures must have occurred within the performance period of the sub-grant
- Expenditures and expenses must have occurred within 100 calendar days of the invoice submission date.

2.6 Records

All records pertaining to each fiscal year of the ESG sub-grant must be retained for a minimum of five years after OCGS's closeout with HUD. This closeout date is NOT the date of the sub-grant recipient's closeout with OCGS.

OCGS's closeout with HUD may be delayed by an open audit, an investigation by the Office of the Investigator General, or by slow ESG fund spending. It is not uncommon for the OCGS closeout with HUD to take 3-5 years, so sub-grant recipients should minimally plan to maintain records for at least 10 years.

Certain uses of ESG funds require longer record retention periods.

When ESG funds are used for the renovation of an emergency shelter and the costs charged to ESG exceed 75% of the value of the building before renovation, then the records must be retained until 10 years after the date that ESG funds are first obligated for the renovation.

When ESG funds are used to convert a building into an emergency shelter and the costs charged to ESG exceed 75% of the value of the building after conversion, then the records must be retained until 10 years after the date that ESG funds are first obligated for the conversion.

Copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or similar method may be substituted for the original records.

Records must be available for review during normal business hours by any authorized representative of HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector General, the Comptroller General of the United States, or OCGS. These representatives have the right to inspect any ESG records for as long as the records are maintained, even if they are maintained longer than required.

To ensure that records are retained for the required length of time, sub-grant recipients should contact OCGS before destroying any ESG records.

2.7 Standard Policies and Procedures

ESG sub-grant recipients are required to have and use certain policies and procedures. Some, like the coordinated entry system, are the same for all agencies. Others, like written standards for providing ESG assistance, are unique to each agency but must contain similar elements.

2.7.1 The Coordinated Entry System

Arkansas Continuums of Care have developed a coordinated entry system in accordance with requirements established by HUD, and each non-victim services provider ESG subgrant recipient within the Continuum of Care's service area must use that assessment system to ensure consistent screening, assessment and referral of program participants. Victim services providers may choose not to use the Continuum of Care's coordinated assessment system.

2.7.2 Written ESG Standards

Sub-grant recipients must establish and consistently apply written standards for providing ESG assistance. Standards must be established for each area covered by the sub-grant recipient, including the area over which the services are coordinated and provided to program participants. Sub-grant recipients are required to submit copies of these standards in their annual funding application.

The requirements for minimum written program standards for COCGS and ESG service providers are detailed in the following charts.

Program	Requirements
	 How are services and referrals coordinated between: Emergency shelter providers, Essential services providers, Homelessness prevention providers Rapid rehousing providers, Homeless service providers Other service providers (including mainstream resources), & Housing providers?
CoC-Wide	• What policies exist to ensure that the needs of special populations are met (i.e. youth, victims of domestic violence, chronically homeless, high barrier clients, etc)?
All ESG providers MUST abide by them.	• What procedures exist for determining and evaluating eligibility for ESG assistance?
	• What formal termination and grievance policies exist? They must reflect HUD's requirement that only the most severe cases be terminated, and allowing clients to return to the program once issues that caused the termination are resolved.
	What policies exist that ensure that ALL ESG providers are screening ALL clients for potential eligibility in not only ESG-funded assistance, but also other housing programs and services offered within the agency or the community (including mainstream resources like TANF and SNAP benefits).

Program	Requirements
Emergency Shelter Programs	 In emergency shelters, what policies exist for: Admission of clients (requirements for entry, if any), Diversion, Referral to services/mainstream resources, Length of stay, Operation of the shelter (hours, staffing, administration, etc.), Safety/Disasters, and Discharge policies for emergency shelters assisted under the ESG program, What safeguards exist to meet the safety and shelter needs of victims of domestic violence, stalking, and other related crimes?

Program	Requirements
Essential Service Programs & Street Outreach	 What standards exist for assessing, prioritizing, and reassessing individuals' and families' needs for services? What targeting and outreach strategies exist for unsheltered persons?

Program	Requirements
Rapid Rehousing and/or Homelessness Prevention Programs	 What standards exist for determining and prioritizing which eligible families /individuals will receive assistance? What standards exist for determining the type, amount, and duration of housing stabilization and/or relocation services? Are there any limits on the assistance that each program participant may receive, such as a maximum amount, months, and/or number times of assistance? What percentage or amount of rent and utilities costs must each program participant pay when receiving assistance? How long can a program participant be provided with rental assistance? Is the amount of assistance adjusted over time? How so?

2.7.3 Participation in HMIS

Sub-grant recipients must enter data on all persons served and all activities assisted under ESG into HMIS or, in the case of victim service providers, a comparable database in accordance with HUD's standards on participation, data collection, and reporting under a local HMIS.

Comparable systems must be able to export data suitable for Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) submission through the ESG-CAPER Annual Reporting Tool (eCart).

2.8 Compliance Monitoring

Compliance with regulatory and programmatic requirements of the ESG sub-grant is generally determined through on-site monitoring by OCGS. Monitoring will be conducted annually at a minimum but may be conducted more frequently at the discretion of OCGS.

Monitoring will generally be conducted after advance notice and at a date and time convenient to both OCGS and sub-grant recipients, but may be conducted without notice and at any normal hour of business operation at the discretion of OCGS.

2.9 Sanctions for Non-Compliance

Failure to comply with HUD regulations, this Policy and Procedures Manual, HUD and/or OCGS Policy memos/directives, or the terms and conditions of the ESG sub-grant may result in denial of reimbursement requests, demand for repayment, reallocation of portions of funding, termination of the sub-grant, or even referral for fraud investigation. The specific sanctions imposed will depend upon the severity of the non-compliance and the degree of the sub-grant recipient's cooperation with OCGS. Sub-grant recipients will be notified of sanctions by certified mail.

2.9.1 Repayment of ESG Funds

When improper expenditure of ESG funds is found to have occurred, regardless of the cause, a demand for repayment will be made. The Assistant Director of OCGS will provide details of the repayment mechanism at that time.

If errors in invoice reimbursement result in overpayment, the overpayment may require repayment by check or may be repaid through an offset of future reimbursement requests. The Assistant Director of OCGS will provide details of overpayment resolution on a case-by-case basis.

2.9.2 Non-Compliance Sanctions Appeal

Sanctions imposed under the provisions of Section 2.9 are subject to appeal by ESG subgrant recipients.

Appeals must be made in writing to the Director of the Division of County Operations within 15 calendar days of the certified delivery date of formal written notice of sanctions being imposed. The appeal must provide all documentation that is to be considered in determining facts in dispute and may present extenuating circumstances in lieu of dispute of facts.

Enforcement actions under appeal are stayed while the Director of the Division of County Operations considers the appeal. The Director will issue a Final Decision in writing within 30 calendar days after receipt of written appeals. The Final Decision of the Director on the appeal of any ESG sanction is subject to normal litigation procedures in the appropriate Court of Law.

Section 3 Environmental Review

ESG sub-grant recipients may not expend any funds, regardless of source, on any project funded in whole or in part with an ESG sub-grant until the environmental review for the ESG sub-grant has been completed. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in cancellation of the sub-grant.

The environmental review is an examination of the potential environmental impacts of a project to ensure compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and all related laws and authorities. ESG sub-grant funds originate with HUD, and all HUD-assisted projects are required to undergo an environmental review to evaluate potential environmental impacts in how the project may affect the environment and how the environment may affect the project, site, and end users.

HUD, in the regulations found at 24 CFR 58, gives ESG grant recipients the authority to perform the environmental review and assume legal responsibilities for compliance with NEPA. As the HUD grantee, OCGS performs environmental reviews for all ESG sub-grants and assumes legal responsibility for NEPA compliance.

Each sub-grant recipient must supply all available, relevant information necessary for OCGS to perform for each property any environmental review required by 24 CFR Part 50 and must carry out mitigating measures required or select alternate eligible property, if deemed necessary.

Section 4 ESG Grant Management

ESG sub-grants may be used to pay for eligible services or activities that were proposed in the sub-grant application, for which funding has been approved and budgeted, and that are provided to eligible program participants within the sub-grant recipient's service area.

4.1 Eligible Program Participants

Generally, there are five eligible populations identified for Emergency Solution Grant programs:

- 1. Literally Homeless (Living on the Street or in Emergency Shelter)
- **2.** Imminently Homeless (within 14 days)
- 3. Unaccompanied youth/families who meet other Federal homeless definitions and additional criteria required by HUD.¹
- 4. Fleeing/attempting to flee Domestic Violence
- **5.** At Risk of Homelessness as defined by HUD

The following chart illustrates which population may be served by which component of ESG:

Component	Category 1: Literally Homeless	terally Imminent Risk Homeless Fleeing		"At Risk" Definition	
Street Outreach	Yes	No	No	Yes	No
Emergency Shelter	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Rapid Rehousing	Yes	No	No	Yes	No
Homelessness Prevention	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes

^{1, 2} In order to use this definition the sub-grant recipient's Continuum of Care must seek HUD approval. **Please** check with OCGS before attempting to use this definition.

Within each component of ESG, however, some services are targeted toward specific subsets of eligible populations.

The most basic question that an ESG sub-grant recipient should ask an applicant is "Where did you sleep last night?" The answer to that question is a good guide to services for which applicants are eligible. The chart on the following page shows eligibility based on the answer to that most basic of questions.

Eligibility for ESG Components by Prior Residence

Residence on Night Prior to Program Entry

(or in case of services only, client's current residence)

Component	Street / Car / Park	Emergency Shelter	Institution³ (≤ 90 days)	Motel (Paid for by charity or Government)	Motel (Paid for by client)	Doubled Up / Couch Surfing	At Risk ⁴	A Domestic Violence Shelter	Fleeing Domestic Violence
Street Outreach	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Emergency Shelter (Operations)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Emergency Shelter (Services)	Yes	Yes	See Section 4.2.2.2 ⁵	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	No
Rapid Re- Housing	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	No
Homelessness Prevention	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes

³ Eligible participants must have been in the institution for less than 90 days <u>AND</u> must have been living in a shelter or on the street immediately before entering the institution.

⁴ Eligible Participants must be at risk of entering a shelter or living on street if assistance is not provided.

⁵ Refer to Section 4.2.2.2, Essential Services under the Emergency Shelter Component, for more information.

4.1.1 Documenting Homelessness or Risk

Literally Homeless individuals or families lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence. Participants who spend nights in a public or private place not meant for human habitation, such as a car, a laundromat, a parking garage or a wooded area, are literally homeless. Anyone living in an emergency shelter, transitional housing, or a hotel or motel paid for by a charitable organization or by a government program is literally homeless. Any individual exiting an institution after 90 days or less who was literally homeless prior to entering the institution is also classified as literally homeless.

Documenting an applicant as literally homeless requires

- Written observation of an outreach worker.
- A written referral from another service provider, or
- Certification by the individual or head of household seeking assistance.
- In addition to written observation, referral or self-certification, individuals exiting an institution must also be documented by discharge paperwork from the institution or a written or oral referral from the institution. If these additional documents cannot be obtained, self-certification and a written record of the case worker's due diligence are required.

Literally homeless populations are eligible for assistance only through ESG's Street Outreach, Emergency Shelter or Rapid Re-Housing components.

Individuals or families who will lose their primary nighttime residence within 14 days of their application for assistance, who have no place to move into after losing that primary nighttime residence, and who lack the resources or support networks needed to obtain other permanent housing, are considered to be at **Imminent Risk of Homelessness**.

Documenting an applicant as being in imminent risk of homelessness requires an eviction notice or a documented and verified statement from the applicant. Applicants must also certify that they have no place to go if evicted and that they lack the financial resources and support networks necessary to obtain permanent housing.

Populations at imminent risk of homelessness may be eligible for assistance through ESG's Emergency Shelter or Homelessness Prevention components.

Populations who are defined as **Homeless under Other Federal Statutes** may be eligible for assistance through ESG's Emergency Shelter or Homelessness Prevention components. In order to use this definition, however, the sub-grant recipient's Continuum of Care must seek HUD approval. *Please check with OCGS before attempting to use this definition*.

Individuals or families who are **Fleeing, or Attempting to Flee, Domestic Violence** are eligible for assistance as long as they have no other residence and lack the resources or support networks to obtain other permanent housing.

Documentation requirements for this category differ slightly between victim services providers⁶ and non-victim services providers.

- Victim services providers must document that the applicant is fleeing with no subsequent residence and lacks resources. These statements must be certified by either the applicant or the victim service provider.
- Non-victim services providers must provide the same documentation and must also, where the safety of the applicant is not jeopardized, verify the applicant's statements.

Participants in this population may be eligible for assistance through ESG's Street Outreach, Emergency Shelter, Rapid Re-Housing or Homelessness Prevention components. Note on the preceding chart that eligibility differs for populations who have fled domestic violence and are living in a shelter or on the street and populations who are attempting to flee domestic violence and are not in a shelter or on the street.

For individuals and families who do not meet the definition of "homeless" under any of the categories established in the Homeless Definition final rule, the McKinney-Vento Act was amended to allow homeless prevention assistance to be provided to persons who are at **Risk of Homelessness**.

These individual or families must have an annual income below 30% of median family income for the area, must not have sufficient resources or support networks to prevent them from moving to an emergency shelter, and must meet at least one of the following conditions:

- (A) has moved because of economic reasons 2 or more times during the 60 days immediately preceding the application for assistance,
- (B) is living in the home of another because of economic hardship,
- (C) has been notified that their right to occupy their current housing or living situation will be terminated within 21 days after the date of application for assistance,
- (D) lives in a hotel or motel and the cost is not paid for by charitable organizations or by Federal, State, or local government programs for low-income individuals,

Page - 23 -

⁶ HUD defines a victim service provider to mean a private non-profit organization whose primary mission is to provide direct services to victims of domestic violence.

- (E) lives in a single room occupancy (SRO) or efficiency apartment unit in which there reside more than 2 persons, or lives in a larger housing unit in which there reside more than one and a half persons per room,
- (F) is exiting a publicly funded institution or system of care,
- (G) otherwise, lives in housing that has characteristics associated with instability and an increased risk of homelessness, as identified in the State's approved Consolidated Plan.

Documentation requirements for this definition include verified household incomes with comparison to the appropriate income threshold for the applicant's county and a documentation of one of items (A) through (G).

4.2 Eligible Program Services and Activities

ESG has four components under which services and activities are provided to program participants and two components for program management. The four components that fund services and activities to participants are Street Outreach, Emergency Shelter, Rapid Re-Housing, and Homelessness Prevention. The remaining components are HMIS and Administration.

4.2.1 Street Outreach (SO)

The Street Outreach component of ESG is intended to facilitate trusting relationships between unsheltered homeless people and sub-grant recipients. A key criterion for this component is *unsheltered* homeless. Individuals and families assisted through Street Outreach must be living on the streets or in places not intended for human habitation and be unwilling or unable to access services in an emergency shelter.

Participants must be literally homeless (Category 1) because they spend nights in a public or private place not meant for human habitation and are unwilling or unable to enter an emergency shelter, or fleeing/attempting to flee domestic violence (Category 4) to be assisted under ESG's Street Outreach component.

If included in the sub-grant budget, eligible activities under Street Outreach include Essential Services (engagement, case management, emergency medical services, emergency mental health services and transportation services to unsheltered homeless people on the street).

4.2.1.1 Street Outreach: Essential Services

If they have been included in an approved budget, engagement, case management, emergency medical services, emergency mental health services and transportation services to unsheltered homeless people on the street are eligible for reimbursement under the Street Outreach component.

Engagement

Engagement is an activity designed to locate, identify, and build relationships with unsheltered homeless people for the purpose of providing immediate support, intervention, and connections with homeless assistance programs. The engagement must take place in the street as opposed to a facility or office.

Reimbursement for engagement activities requires documentation of costs and associated payments.

Case Management

Case Management under the Street Outreach component means the assessment of the housing and service needs of unsheltered homeless persons, and the arrangement for, coordination of, and monitoring of delivery of services to those persons. It must be provided in the street as opposed to a permanent fixed location.

Reimbursement for case management under the Street Outreach component requires the following documentation:

- a. Timesheets for the person(s) performing the case management; and
- **b.** Payroll documents for the person(s) performing the case management.

On-site files must also include:

- **c.** Case notes
- **d.** Documentation of unsheltered homeless status
- e. Documentation that the service was provided in the street

Emergency Medical Services

Emergency Medical Services are the direct outpatient treatment of medical conditions by licensed professionals in community-based settings where unsheltered homeless people are living.

Reimbursement for emergency medical services under the Street Outreach component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

- **b.** Documentation of unsheltered homeless status
- c. Documentation that the service was provided in the street

Emergency Mental Health Services

Emergency Mental Health Services are the direct outpatient treatment of mental health conditions by licensed professionals in community-based settings where unsheltered homeless people are living.

Reimbursement for emergency mental health services under the Street Outreach component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

- **b.** Documentation of unsheltered homeless status
- **c.** Documentation that the service was provided in the street

Transportation Services

Transportation is travel by service providers during the provision of eligible services and the costs of transporting unsheltered people to emergency shelters or other service facilities.

Reimbursement for transportation services under the Street Outreach component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

- **b.** Documentation of unsheltered homeless status;
- **c.** Documentation that the expenses were incurred during the provision of eligible services; and
- **d.** Documentation that the service was provided in the street.

Services for Special Populations

Services for Special Populations are any of the essential services listed above that have been tailored to address the special needs of homeless youth, victims of domestic violence and related crimes/threats, and/or people living with HIV/AIDS who are literally homeless.

Reimbursement for services for special populations under the Street Outreach component requires all documentation associated with the base service with additional narrative explaining how the service has been tailored to the specific needs of the special population.

4.2.2 Emergency Shelters (ES)

The Emergency Shelter component of ESG is intended to make emergency shelters safe, available, and viable so that homeless people can have a safe place to sleep at night. Shelters may go beyond that goal and offer safe, temporary, all-day residences to homeless individuals or families who need a base of operations from which to find employment, connect with mainstream services, and obtain permanent housing. Shelters may also opt to be day shelters that are open only during daylight hours to provide meals, essential services and refuge from the weather.

Emergency shelters must meet minimum safety, sanitation, and privacy standards to receive ESG funding. Those standards are detailed in 4.2.2.1.

Participants who are literally homeless (Category 1), at Imminent Risk of Homelessness (Category 2), Homeless Under Other Federal Statutes (Category 3), or fleeing / attempting to flee domestic violence (Category 4) may be assisted under ESG's Street Outreach component.

If included in the sub-grant budget, eligible activities under Emergency Shelter include Essential Services (Case Management, Child Care, Education Services, Employment Assistance/Job Training, Outpatient Health, Legal Services, Life Skills, Mental Health Services, Substance Abuse Treatment Services, Transportation, and Services for Special Populations), Shelter Rehabilitation, and Shelter Operations (Maintenance, Rent, Security, Fuel, Insurance, Utilities, Food, Furnishings, Equipment, Supplies, and Hotel/Motel Vouchers).

4.2.2.1 Minimum Standards for Emergency Shelters

Any emergency shelter funded in whole or in part through an ESG sub-grant must meet the habitability standards for emergency shelters established by the Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program Interim Rule.

A checklist for meeting these minimum requirements is provided in <u>Appendix 2</u>. Applicants must submit this completed checklist as part of the application and, if funded, the condition of the shelter will be verified during on-site monitoring visits.

Shelters not meeting the Habitability Standards will be subject to the sanctions found in Section 2.9.

4.2.2.2 Essential Services

Essential services can only be provided to participants who are literally homeless. If they have been included in an approved budget, the following essential services are eligible for reimbursement under ESG's Emergency Shelter component:

- Case Management
- Child Care
- Education Services
- Employment Assistance/Job Training
- Outpatient Health
- Legal Services
- Life Skills
- Mental Health Services
- Substance Abuse Treatment Services
- Transportation
- Services for Special Populations

Case Management

Under the Emergency Shelter component, case management is the process of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program participant. Included activities and services are:

- Using the required coordinated assessment system;
- Conducting the required initial evaluation that must verify and document eligibility;

- Counseling;
- Developing, securing, and coordinating services and obtaining any Federal, State, or local benefits to which the participant is entitled;
- Monitoring and evaluating program participant progress;
- Providing information and referrals to other providers;
- Providing ongoing risk assessment and safety planning with victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking; and
- Developing an individualized housing and service plan, including planning a path to permanent housing stability.

Reimbursement for case management under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

- a. Timesheets for the person(s) performing the case management; and
- **b.** Payroll documents for the person(s) performing the case management.

On-site files must also include:

- c. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility;
- d. Case notes;
- **e.** Documentation of efforts to connect participants to other resources for supportive services; and
- **f.** Housing plans for stability in permanent housing (if applicable).

Child Care

Under the Emergency Shelter component, the costs of child care for program participants, including providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated sets of appropriate developmental activities, are eligible. The children must be under the age of 13, unless they are disabled. Disabled children must be under the age of 18. The childcare center must be licensed by the jurisdiction in which it operates in order for its costs to be eligible.

Reimbursement for child care under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

- b. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility; and
- **c.** License number of the child care provider.

Education Services

When necessary for the program participant to obtain and maintain housing, the costs of education services to improve knowledge and basic skills are eligible. Services include instruction or training in consumer education, health education, substance abuse prevention, literacy, English as a Second Language, and General Educational Development (GED).

Component services or activities are screening, assessment and testing; individual or group instruction; tutoring; provision of books, supplies and instructional material; counseling; and referral to community resources.

Reimbursement for educational services under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments

On-site files must also include:

b. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.

Employment Assistance / Job Training

The costs of Employment Assistance/Job Training programs are eligible, including classroom, online, and/or computer instruction; on-the-job instruction; and services that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or increasing earning potential. Learning skills include those skills that can be used to secure and retain a job.

Services that assist individuals in securing employment consist of employment screening, assessment, or testing; structured job skills and job-seeking skills; special training and tutoring, including literacy training and prevocational training; books and instructional material; counseling or job coaching; and referral to community resources.

Reimbursement for employment assistance / job training programs under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

b. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.

Outpatient Health Services

Eligible Outpatient Health costs are for the direct outpatient treatment of medical conditions and are provided by licensed medical professionals. ESG funds may be used only for these services to the extent that other appropriate health services are unavailable within the community.

Eligible treatment consists of assessing a program participant's health problems and developing a treatment plan; assisting program participants to understand their health needs; providing directly or assisting program participants to obtain appropriate medical treatment, preventive medical care, and health maintenance services, including emergency medical services; providing medication and follow-up services; and providing preventive and non-cosmetic dental care.

Reimbursement for outpatient health services under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

b. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.

Legal Services

Eligible Legal Services costs are the hourly fees for legal advice and representation by attorneys licensed and in good standing with the Arkansas Bar Association, and by person(s) under the supervision of the licensed attorney, regarding matters that interfere with the program participant's ability to obtain and retain housing.

ESG funds may be used only for these services to the extent that other appropriate legal services are unavailable or inaccessible within the community.

Eligible subject matters are child support, guardianship, paternity, emancipation, and legal separation, orders of protection and other civil remedies for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, and appeal of veterans and public benefit claim denials.

Component services or activities may include client intake, preparation of cases for trial, provision of legal advice, representation at hearings, and counseling.

Fees based on the actual service performed (i.e., fee for service) are also eligible, but only if the cost would be less than the cost of hourly fees. Filing fees and other necessary court costs are also eligible. If the grantee is a legal services provider and performs the services itself, the eligible costs are the grantee's employees' salaries and other costs necessary to perform the services.

Legal services for immigration and citizenship matters and issues relating to mortgages, retainer fees and contingency fees are ineligible costs.

Reimbursement for legal services under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

- **b.** Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.
- c. Documentation that the attorney is licensed with the Arkansas Bar Association; and
- **d.** Narrative relating the legal services to matters that interfere with the program participant's ability to obtain and retain housing.

Life Skills Training

The costs of life skills training, such as teaching critical life management skills that may never have been learned or have been lost during the course of physical or mental illness, domestic violence, substance use, and homelessness are eligible costs. These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function independently in the community.

Component life skills training are budgeting resources, managing money, managing a household, resolving conflict, shopping for food and needed items, improving nutrition, using public transportation, and parenting.

Reimbursement for life skills training under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments; and

On-site files must also include:

- **b.** Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility;
- **c.** Narrative relating the training to skills necessary for the program participant to function independently in the community.

Mental Health Services

Eligible Mental Health Services costs are the direct outpatient treatment by licensed professionals of mental health conditions.

ESG funds may only be used for these services to the extent that other appropriate mental health services are unavailable or inaccessible within the community.

Mental health services are the application of therapeutic processes to personal, family, situational, or occupational problems in order to bring about positive resolution of the problem or improved individual or family functioning or circumstances. Problem areas may include family and marital relationships, parent-child problems, or symptom management.

Eligible treatment consists of crisis interventions; individual, family, or group therapy sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems.

Reimbursement for mental health services under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

b. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.

Substance Abuse Treatment Services

Eligible Substance Abuse Treatment Services are designed to prevent, reduce, eliminate, or deter relapse of substance abuse or addictive behaviors and are provided by licensed or certified professionals.

ESG funds may only be used for these services to the extent that other appropriate substance abuse treatment services are unavailable or inaccessible within the community.

Eligible treatment consists of client intake and assessment, and outpatient treatment for up to 30 days. Group and individual counseling and drug testing are eligible costs. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are not eligible costs.

Reimbursement for substance abuse treatment under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

- b. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility; and
- **c.** Narrative explaining that other appropriate substance abuse treatment services are unavailable or inaccessible within the community.

Transportation Services

Eligible Transportation costs consist of the transportation costs of a program participant's travel to and from medical care, employment, childcare, or other eligible essential services facilities. These costs include the following:

- The cost of a program participant's travel on public transportation;
- If service workers use their own vehicles, mileage allowance for service workers to visit program participants;
- The cost of purchasing or leasing a vehicle for the sub-grant recipient in which staff transports program participants and/or staff serving program participants, and the cost of gas, insurance, taxes, and maintenance for the vehicle; and
- The travel costs of sub-grant recipient to accompany or assist program participants to use public transportation.

Reimbursement for transportation services under the Emergency Shelter component requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

b. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.

Services for Special Populations

Services for Special Populations are the Essential Services of this Section that have been tailored to address the special needs of homeless youth, the victims of domestic violence and related crimes or threats, and/or people living with HIV/AIDS in emergency shelters.

Reimbursement for services for special populations under the Emergency Shelter component requires all documentation associated with the base service with additional narrative explaining how the service has been tailored to the specific needs of the special population.

4.2.2.3 Renovation, Rehabilitation or Conversion

If they have been included in an approved budget, renovation, rehabilitation and conversion activities are eligible for reimbursement under ESG's Emergency Shelter component.

Buildings renovated, rehabilitated or converted with ESG funds must be maintained as emergency shelters for a minimum of three to 10 years, depending upon the value of the building and the level of improvement. Renovated shelters must remain homeless shelters for a minimum of three years. Rehabilitated or converted shelters must remain shelters for a minimum of 10 years, and this minimum period of use must be enforced by a recorded deed or use restriction.

Renovation

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, renovation is "any structural rehabilitation where the associated cost does not exceed 75% of the value of the building before the rehabilitation." The value of the building is the monetary value assigned to the structure by an independent real estate appraiser or reasonably established by the subgrant recipient or the State.

Renovation costs include:

- Labor, materials, tools and other costs of improving buildings, including repair directed toward an accumulation of deferred maintenance;
- Replacement of principal fixtures and components of existing buildings;
- Installation of security devices; and
- Improvement through alterations or incidental additions to, or enhancement of, existing buildings, including improvements to make the structure more energyefficient.

Renovations assisted with ESG funding must meet all applicable State and local fire and building codes, electrical codes, plumbing codes, mechanical (HVAC) codes, and energy codes. Shelters renovated with ESG funds must be used as a homeless shelter for a minimum of three years.

Rehabilitation

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, rehabilitation is any structural rehabilitation where the associated cost exceeds 75% of the value of the building before rehabilitation. The value of the building is the monetary value assigned to the structure by an independent real estate appraiser or reasonably established by the sub-grant recipient or the State.

Rehabilitations assisted with ESG funding must meet all applicable State and local fire and building codes, electrical codes, plumbing codes, mechanical (HVAC) codes, and energy codes. The State codes in effect for this Policy and Procedures Manual are listed in Appendix 2. Shelters rehabilitated with ESG funds must be used as a homeless shelter for a minimum of 10 years, and this minimum period of use must be enforced by a recorded deed or use restriction.

Conversion

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, conversion is a change in the use of a building to an emergency shelter for the homeless with an associated cost that exceeds 75% of the value of the building after conversion. The value of the building is the monetary value assigned to the structure by an independent real estate appraiser or reasonably established by the sub-grant recipient or the State. Shelters converted with ESG funds must be used as a homeless shelter for a minimum of 10 years, and this minimum period of use must be enforced by a recorded deed or use restriction.

Reimbursement for renovation, rehabilitation and conversion activities under the Emergency Shelter component requires:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

b. Identification of the procurement method followed.

4.2.2.4 Shelter Operations

If they have been included in an approved budget, the following shelter operations are eligible for reimbursement under ESG's Emergency Shelter component:

- Maintenance
- Rent
- Security
- Fuel
- Insurance
- Utilities
- Food
- Furnishings
- Equipment
- Supplies
- Hotel/Motel Vouchers

Eligible shelter operations costs must be necessary for the continued operation of the shelter. Sub-grant recipients should consult with OCGS before incurring expenses that do not clearly meet that criterion. Prior approval by DCO/OCGS is required before incurring expenses or expending funds for costs not included in the approved budget.

Maintenance

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, emergency shelter maintenance is the cost associated with minor or routine repairs under \$1,000.00. It may also be used to pay insurance deductibles under \$1,000.00 for repairs covered by insurance.

Reimbursement for shelter maintenance requires the following documentation:

a. Documentation of costs and associated payments.

On-site files must also include:

b. A narrative explaining the maintenance performed.

Rent

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, emergency shelter rent is the cost of renting a facility for use as an emergency shelter. It does not include the cost of renting storage space or equipment.

Reimbursement for shelter rent requires the following documentation:

a. Payment documentation.

On-site files must also include:

b. A lease in the name of the sub-grant recipient.

Security

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, shelter security includes the cost of security systems and monthly monitored system fees, smoke alarms and monthly monitored system fees, and basic security equipment such as locks, deadbolts, and video surveillance equipment.

Reimbursement for shelter security costs requires documentation of the costs and associated payments.

Fuel⁷

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, shelter fuel is winter heating fuel such as propane, oil or wood.

Reimbursement for shelter fuel requires documentation of the cost and associated payment.

Insurance

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, shelter insurance is the monthly premium for liability insurance, property insurance, auto insurance for vehicles owned by the shelter and used solely for shelter business, and fidelity bonding for board directors and officers.

Monthly premiums, quarterly payments and annual payments are all eligible for reimbursement as long as the period of coverage does not extend outside of the sub-grant performance period. If the insurance coverage period does extend outside of the sub-grant's performance period, sub-grant recipients may invoice for reimbursement of the premium for the coverage within the performance period on a pro rata basis.

Reimbursement for a shelter insurance cost requires:

a. Documentation of the premium and associated payment.

On-site files must also include:

⁷ Fuel refers to heating fuel for the shelter. It does not mean fuel used for vehicles, which is a Transportation cost.

b. A certificate of coverage that shows the shelter address, the vehicle(s) covered, or the positions bonded.

Utilities

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, the monthly costs of water, electricity, natural gas, trash disposal, pest control and telecom utilities associated with phone service, wireless service, internet access and the delivery of television programming should be submitted on monthly invoices as Emergency Shelter Operating and Maintenance expenses.

The monthly fees for utilities are eligible costs, but late fees and reconnection charges are not eligible for reimbursement.

Reimbursement for a shelter utility cost requires:

- a. A utility bill showing the shelter address as the service address; and
- b. Documentation of the associated payment.

Food

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, food for an emergency shelter is any food intended for human consumption that is served to shelter residents within the shelter. Meals purchased and served to shelter residents in a restaurant are not eligible for reimbursement under shelter operation. Food served to low income area residents who are not shelter residents, as part of a food pantry or similar operation, is not eligible for reimbursement under shelter operation. Food for pets is not an allowable expense.

While this Policy and Procedures Manual does not specifically disallow any particular food intended for human consumption, sub-grant recipients should strive to provide nutritious meals while avoiding unnecessary expenses.

Reimbursement for shelter food requires documentation of the cost and associated payment. The cost documentation must show the items purchased.

Furnishings

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, shelter furnishings include any nondisposable item needed to make the shelter fit to live in. The following list of eligible furnishings is a guide only. It is not exclusive, and additional items may be eligible.

- Reasonable clothing and shoes for shelter residents;
- Beds, mattresses and box springs, pillows, sheets, blankets, alarm clocks and storage units for clothing;
- Towels and washcloths, shower curtains and floor rugs;
- Tables and chairs, pots and pans, dishes, glasses, cutlery and small kitchen appliances;
- Curtains and window blinds;
- Couches and living room seating;
- When placed in a common area for use by all shelter residents, a television would be an eligible item;

- When placed in a common area for use by all shelter residents, a computer, computer peripherals and computer desk would be eligible items;
- For shelters that accept families with children and have indoor or outdoor play areas, reasonable toys and play sets are eligible furnishings.

Reimbursement for shelter furnishings requires:

- a. A brief narrative of the need; and
- b. Documentation of the cost and associated payment.

Equipment

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, shelter equipment includes heating and air conditioning equipment, laundry appliances and large kitchen appliances. The purchase of outdoor lawn equipment is not an eligible expense.

Reimbursement for shelter equipment requires:

- a. A brief narrative of the need; and
- b. Documentation of the cost and associated payment.

Supplies

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, shelter supplies include any disposable item that is not food. Cleaning supplies, diapers, toilet paper and personal hygiene products are examples of shelter supplies.

Reimbursement for shelter supplies requires documentation of the cost and associated payment. The cost documentation must show the items purchased.

Hotel/Motel Vouchers

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, hotel/motel vouchers are eligible costs only when no appropriate emergency shelter is available for a homeless family or individual. Vouchers may be issued for a maximum of three days and may be issued only once per individual or family.

Reimbursement for hotel/motel vouchers requires:

- a. A brief narrative of the steps taken to find appropriate shelter for the homeless family or individual;
- b. Documentation of the cost and associated payment.

On-site files must also include:

c. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility.

4.2.3 Rapid Re-Housing (RR) and Homelessness Prevention (HP)

The Rapid Re-Housing component is intended to move literally homeless individuals and families out of emergency shelters and into permanent housing by providing housing

relocation and stabilization services and rental assistance. The Homelessness Prevention component is intended to assist individuals or families at risk of homelessness with housing stability and prevent them from becoming homeless.

The eligible services and activities lists for Rapid Re-Housing and Homelessness Prevention are identical, but the documentation requirements are slightly different. Unlike Rapid Re-Housing, Homelessness Prevention requires an initial income evaluation for all households, and households must have an income level below 30% of the Area Median Income (AMI) (see <u>Appendix 3</u>) and must demonstrate that they lack sufficient resources or support networks to prevent themselves from becoming homeless without assistance.

The rent for the housing must not exceed the HUD Fair Market Rent, and it must meet the area standard of rent reasonableness. The Fair Market Rent is a value determined by HUD, and the Fair Market Rent (FMR) values for each Arkansas county are published at https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html. It is important to note that FMRs contain utility allowances.

The Rent Reasonableness Standard is determined by each sub-grant recipient through discussions with local realtors and consideration of the location, quality, size, type, and age of local housing stock. Amenities, maintenance, and utilities to be provided by the owner should also be considered. The Rent Reasonableness Standard should be a written document that is included with each Rapid Re-Housing or Homelessness Prevention file. It should state the maximum reasonable rent for 1BR, 2BR, 3BR and 4BR housing in the area, and it should describe the steps that were taken to arrive at those rents.

If included in the sub-grant budget, eligible activities under Rapid Re-Housing include Rental Assistance (short-term rental assistance, medium-term rental assistance, and/or assistance with rent in arrears), Housing Relocation and Stabilization Financial Assistance (application fees, moving costs, security deposits, last month rents, utility deposits and utility payments), and Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services (housing search and placement costs, case management, mediation, credit repair and legal services).

Reimbursement for Rental Assistance (short-term rental assistance, medium-term rental assistance, and/or assistance with rent in arrears) requires:

- a. Documentation of compliance with the HUD Fair Market Rent Standard (submission required only for the initial month of assistance);
- b. Documentation of compliance with the Sub-Grant recipient's Rent Reasonableness Standard (submission required only for the initial month of assistance);
- c. Documentation of compliance with the ESG Minimum Habitability Standards for Permanent Housing (submission required only for the initial month of assistance);

- d. Documentation that lead-based paint notification requirements have been met (submission required only for the initial month of assistance and only for housing constructed prior to 1978);
- e. A lease between the program participant⁸ and the landlord (submission required only for the initial month of assistance);
- f. A Rental Assistance Agreement between the landlord and the sub-grant recipient (submission required only for the initial month of assistance); and
- g. Documentation of the cost and associated payment.
- h. Reimbursement under Homelessness Prevention also includes documentation of compliance with the 30% AMI income limit.

On-site files must also include:

- i. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility; and
- i. Case notes.

Reimbursement for Housing Relocation and Stabilization Financial Assistance (application fees, moving costs, security deposits, last month rents, utility deposits and utility payments) requires:

- a. Documentation of compliance with the ESG Minimum Habitability Standards for Permanent Housing (submission required only for the initial month of assistance);
- b. Documentation of the cost and associated payment.
- c. Reimbursement under Homelessness Prevention also includes documentation of compliance with the 30% AMI income limit.

On-site files must also include:

- d. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility; and
- e. Case notes.

Reimbursement for Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services (housing search and placement costs, case management, mediation, credit repair and legal services) requires:

- a. Documentation of compliance with the ESG Minimum Habitability Standards for Permanent Housing (submission required only for the initial month of assistance);
- b. Documentation of the cost and associated payment.
- c. Reimbursement under Homelessness Prevention also includes documentation of compliance with the 30% AMI income limit.

On-site files must also include:

- d. Initial Intake Assessment Form documenting eligibility; and
- e. Case notes.

4.2.3.1 Rapid Re-Housing and Homelessness Prevention Eligibility.

Literally Homeless populations (Category 1) and participants who are fleeing domestic violence (Category 4) are eligible for assistance with Rapid Re-Housing.

⁸ In consideration of client privacy concerns and of the potential danger to the health and safety of their clients, Domestic Violence Services providers may redact the names of program participants from leases and substitute identifying database record numbers that correspond to the HMIS-comparable database used by the provider.

Populations in imminent risk of homelessness, homeless under other federal statutes, fleeing domestic violence, or meeting the definition of "at risk of homelessness" are eligible for assistance with Homelessness Prevention.

4.2.3.2 RR and HP Housing Relocation and Stabilization Financial Assistance

Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services are comprised of Financial Assistance and Services. If they have been included in an approved budget, the following housing relocation and stabilization Financial Assistance activities are eligible for reimbursement under the RR or HP components:

- Application Fee
- Security Deposit
- Last Month's Rent
- Utility Deposit
- Utility Payment
- Moving Costs

If they have been included in an approved budget, the following housing relocation and stabilization Service costs are eligible for reimbursement under the RR or HP components:

- Housing Search and Placement
- Housing Stability Case Management
- Mediation
- Legal Services
- Credit Repair

Financial Assistance Activities

Application Fees

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, application fees are the fees charged by the owner to all applicants seeking housing.

Security Deposits

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, security deposits may not exceed the equivalent of two months' rent.

Last Month's Rent

If it is necessary to obtain housing for a program participant, ESG funds may be used to pay the last month's rent to the housing owner. For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, the last month's rent must be paid at the time the security deposit and first month's rent are paid and may not exceed one month's rent. If paid, the last month's rent must be included in calculating the program participant's total rental assistance. Total rental assistance cannot exceed 24 months during any 3-year period.

Utility Deposits

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, utility deposits are fees that all customers are required to pay to be connected to gas, electric, water and sewer services. The fees must be paid in the name of the program participant so that, when refunded or credited to the account, the benefit is to the program participant and not to the sub-grant recipient.

Utility Payments

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, utility payments for gas, electric, water, and sewer may be made for up to 24 months within any 3-year period. These payments may include up to six months of utility payments in arrears per service. Utility payment assistance may only be provided if the service is in the name of the program participant or in the name of a member of the same household and if the lease clearly indicates that the utilities are the tenant's responsibility.

Electricity payments are not available when the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) Crisis program is open, and gas payments are not available when the regular LIHEAP program is in operation.

Moving Costs

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, the cost of moving a participant to permanent housing is an eligible expense. These costs can include truck rental, payment to movers, and payment of up to three months of temporary storage fees if the fees are accrued after the date the program participant begins receiving assistance and before the program participant moves into permanent housing. Payment of storage fees in arrears is not eligible.

Service Costs

Housing Search and Placement

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, housing search and placement under this component encompasses the steps necessary to help program participants locate and obtain suitable permanent housing. This includes assessing the barriers to housing that the participant faces, developing an action plan for locating housing that meets the participant's needs and preferences, negotiating with owners, ensuring that identified housing meets habitability, lead-based paint and rent reasonableness standards, explaining the lease to the participant, assisting with moving arrangements, and helping the participant get utility services connected.

Housing Stability Case Management

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, ESG funds may be used to pay the cost of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services to facilitate housing stability for a program participant who resides in permanent

housing or to assist a program participant in overcoming immediate barriers to obtaining housing. This assistance is limited to 30 days during the period the program participant is seeking permanent housing and 24 months during the period the program participant is living in permanent housing.

Component services and activities consist of:

- Using the coordinated assessment system to evaluate individuals and families applying for or receiving Rapid Re-housing assistance;
- Conducting the initial evaluation to verify and document eligibility for individuals and families applying for Rapid Re-housing assistance;
- Counseling;
- Developing, securing, and coordinating services and obtaining Federal, State, and local benefits;
- Monitoring and evaluating program participant progress;
- Providing information and referrals to other providers;
- Developing an individualized housing and service plan, including planning a path to permanent housing stability; and
- Conducting re-evaluations

Mediation

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, mediation between the program participant and the owner of the housing, or between the program participant and the person(s) with whom the program participant is living, must be necessary to prevent the program participant from losing the permanent housing in which the program participant currently resides in order to be a reimbursable expense.

Legal Services

Eligible Legal Services costs are the hourly fees for legal advice and representation by attorneys licensed and in good standing with the Arkansas Bar Association, and by person(s) under the supervision of the licensed attorney, regarding matters that interfere with the program participant's ability to obtain and retain housing or that will likely result in the program participant losing the permanent housing in which the program participant currently resides.

ESG funds may be used only to the extent that other appropriate legal services are unavailable or inaccessible within the community.

Eligible subject matters are child support, guardianship, paternity, emancipation, and legal separation, orders of protection and other civil remedies for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, appeal of veterans and public benefit claim denials, and landlord/tenant matters.

Component services or activities may include client intake, preparation of cases for trial, provision of legal advice, representation at hearings, and counseling.

Fees based on the actual service performed (i.e., fee for service) are also eligible, but only if the cost would be less than the cost of hourly fees. Filing fees and other necessary court costs are also eligible. If the grantee is a legal services provider and performs the services itself, the eligible costs are the grantee's employees' salaries and other costs necessary to perform the services.

Legal services for immigration and citizenship matters and issues relating to mortgages, retainer fees and contingency fees are ineligible costs.

4.2.3.3 RR and HP Rental Assistance

If they have been included in an approved budget, short-term rental assistance, mediumterm rental assistance, and payment of rent in arrears are eligible for reimbursement under the RR and HP components. The assistance may be for any combination of the three types of rental assistance.

- Short-term rental assistance may be provided for up to three months.
- Assistance for more than three months is classified as medium-term rental assistance and may be provided for up to 24 months.
- Payment of rental arrears consists of a one-time payment for up to six months' rent in arrears and may include late fees.

Short- and Medium-Term Rental Assistance

The State has the legal authority, under §576.105(5c), to cap the dollar amount of rental assistance that a program participant may receive, to limit the number of months that a program participant may receive rental assistance, or to specify maximum number of times that a program participant may receive rental assistance under the ESG Program. The State may also require program participants to share in the costs of rent.

For the purposes of the ESG Program in Arkansas, rent is defined as the sum of the total monthly rent for the unit, any fees required for occupancy under the lease (other than late fees and pet fees) and, if the tenant pays separately for utilities, the monthly allowance for gas, electric, water and sewer as established by the public housing authority for the area in which the housing is located. Late fees are not eligible rental assistance expenses unless they are late fees included under payment of rent in arrears.

This assistance cannot be provided to program participants who are receiving tenant-based rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving project-based rental assistance or operating assistance, from other public monies (i.e. subsidized housing).

This assistance cannot be provided if the rent exceeds the Fair Market Rent for the county where the residence is located. Fair Market Rent is a value determined by HUD and published at https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html. The rent must also comply with the rent reasonableness standard as determined by the sub-grant recipient through consideration of the location, quality, size, type, and age of the housing, as well as any amenities, maintenance, and utilities to be provided by the owner.

Short-term rental assistance is the payment of rent for eligible program participants for up to three months. Medium-term rental assistance is the payment of rent for eligible program participants for more than three months but less than 24 months. Both forms of assistance are limited to a total of 24 months in any 3-year period, and income reevaluation must take place at least once every year. At the time of re-evaluation, the participant's household income must be less than 30 percent of the HUD-published area median household income (see Appendix 3) to continue receiving assistance.

Assistance with Rental Arrears

Assistance with rental arrears consists of a one-time payment of up to six months' rent in arrears.

Unlike short- and medium-term rental assistance, rental arrears may include late fees and may be provided to program participants who receive tenant-based rental assistance paid for with public monies or live in housing that receives project-based rental assistance or operating assistance from public monies.

As authorized under the provisions of under §576.105(5c), OCGS has imposed an additional restriction in service on this activity. Rental arrears may not be paid for program participants more than one time in any five year period.

4.2.3.4 Homelessness Prevention Income Limits

ESG regulations are very specific about the income threshold for assistance with Homelessness Prevention funds. Income limits from other HUD programs – for example the "Extremely Low Income limits for families" found in the HUD Section 8 program – cannot be used.

Clarification on this issue was published in the HUD ESG Income Limits resource in March of 2016. That document may be found in <u>Appendix 3</u>.

4.2.4 HMIS

Eligible Costs:

The HMIS component is intended to help ESG sub-grant recipients defray certain costs associated with contributing data to the HMIS or data collection system. ESG sub-grant applications are permitted to request up to \$1,000 in this component by OCGS policy, and it is expected that this line will be used for annual licensing fees. Allowances may be made for equipment and for training staff in the use of HMIS.

If the sub-grant recipient is a Victim Services Provider or Legal Services Provider, ESG funds may be used to establish and operate a comparable database that collects client-level data over time and generates unduplicated aggregate reports based on the data. Information entered into a comparable database must not be entered directly into or provided to an HMIS.

Restrictions: Activities funded under this section must comply with HUD's standards on participation, data collection, and reporting under HMIS.

Reimbursement for HMIS requires documentation of costs and associated payments.

4.2.5 Administration

Eligible Costs:

The Administration component is intended to help ESG sub-grant recipients defray certain Program Administration Costs (PACs) incurred as a result of OCGS requirements. The amount awarded to each agency will depend on the total number of approved agencies and the amount of funding available in that component. The Administrative funds may be used for travel to attend the mandatory training workshop or other approved ESG related training. These funds may also be used to purchase general office supplies and equipment such as copy paper, ink cartridges, computer software, computers and printers. Also included are office furniture such as desk, chairs, and file cabinets. These expenses must be for use in the ESG program.

Reimbursement for Administrative expenses requires documentation of costs and associated payments.

4.4 Ineligible Activities

Certain activities are ineligible for reimbursement with ESG funds under federal regulations, state statute, or OCGS policy. The following tables list activities that are ineligible under any component of ESG, as well as activities that are ineligible under some components but eligible under others.

1. Ineligible Under All ESG Components

- Depreciation, bad debts and late fees (except under arrears for RR/HP rental assistance)
- Recruitment, non HUD staff training, entertainment, non HUD conferences, and retreats
- Public relations or fundraising
- Any activities not explicitly detailed in the regulations
- Payment of client credit card or other consumer debt;
- Payment of client mortgage costs and mortgage arrears;
- Acquisition of real property
- New construction
- Property clearance or demolition
- Costs associated with the organization rather than the project (advertisements, pamphlets about organization, surveys, etc.)
- Salary of case management supervisor when not working directly on participant issues (unless charged to administration)
- Advocacy, planning, and organizational capacity building
- Transportation costs not directly associated with service delivery (see eligible activities for specific details on eligible transportation costs)
- Legal Services for immigration and citizenship matters
- Substance abuse treatment services for inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol treatment
- Cash assistance to participants
- Financial assistance to a household for a purpose and time period supported by another public source (unless it is 6 months or less of arrears under RR/HP)
- Payment or modification of a client credit card and other debts (excluding arrears, when supported under RR/HP)

2. Ineligible Under The Street Outreach Component

- Services performed in a building or not on the street.
- Motel/Hotel Vouchers
- Any activities not explicitly detailed in the regulations
- Any other ineligible expenses listed above or in ESG regulations/manuals/program notices.

3. Ineligible Under The Emergency Shelter Component

- Services performed on the street (those should be offered under Street Outreach).
- Any activities not explicitly detailed in the regulations
- Any other ineligible expenses listed above or in ESG regulations/manuals/program notices.

4. Ineligible Under The Rapid Rehousing Component

- Services to program participants who are not <u>literally homeless</u> under HUDs definition.
- Motel/Hotel Vouchers
- Travel costs, Car repair or transportation costs for Clients
- Medical or dental care and medicines
- Clothing, grooming, or Pet care
- Home furnishings
- Work or education related materials
- Payment of temporary storage fees in arrears
- Any activities not explicitly detailed in the regulations
- Any other ineligible expenses listed above or in ESG regulations/manuals/program notices.

5. Ineligible Under The Homelessness Prevention Component

- Services to program participants who are not at imminent risk or at risk of homelessness under HUDs definition.
- Motel/Hotel Vouchers
- Travel costs, Car repair or transportation costs for Clients
- Medical or dental care and medicines
- Clothing, grooming, or Pet care
- Home furnishings
- Work or education related materials
- Payment of temporary storage fees in arrears
- Any activities not explicitly detailed in the regulations
- Any other ineligible expenses listed above or in ESG regulations/manuals/program notices.

6. Ineligible Under The Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Component

- Any activities not explicitly detailed in the regulations
- Any other ineligible expenses listed above or in ESG regulations/manuals/program notices.

7. Ineligible Under The Administration Component

- Any activities not explicitly detailed in the regulations
- Any other ineligible expenses listed above or in ESG regulations/manuals/program notices.

Appendix 1 - Continuums of Care In Arkansas							

Continuums of Care in Arkansas

Continuum of Care	Contact	E-mail	Phone	Mailing Address
Central Arkansas Team Care for the Homeless (CATCH)	Michelle Spencer-Gardner Eric Alexander	mspencergardner@littlerock.gov director@safeharborlittlerock.org	(501) 371-4439 (501) 374-5399d	CATCH 2701 S. Elm St. Little Rock, AR 72204
Fayetteville/Northwest Arkansas CoC	Pam Hutcheson	pam.hutcheson@nwacoccom	(479) 717-7737	NWA Continuum of Care P. O. Box 3643 Fayetteville, AR 72702
Southeast Arkansas CoC	Donald Sampson	dsampson.pbha@yahoo.com	(870) 536-2074 Ext. 232	SOAR 1716 S. Georgia Street Pine Bluff, AR 71601
Old Fort Homeless Coalition	Elaine Burton	Elaineburton2004@yahoo.com	(479) 420-8490	Old Fort Homeless Coalition 2009 Foster Branch Ln Van Buren. AR. 72956
Arkansas Balance of State	Casey Kid	ckid@occnet.org	(501) 431-7041	Arkansas Balance of State 339 Charteroak Hot Springs, AR 71901

Appendix 2 - Minimum	Habitability Standards	for Emergency Shelters

Appendix 2 - Minimum Habitability Standards for Emergency Shelters

Structure and Materials

The shelter building must be structurally sound to protect program participants in the shelter from the elements without posing any threat to health and safety.

Access

The shelter must be accessible in accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (29 U. S. C. 794) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 8; the Fair Housing Act (42 U. S. C. 3601 *et seq.*) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 100; and Title II of the Americans With Disabilities Act (42 U. S. C. 12131 *et seq.*) and 28 CFR 35.

Space and Security

Except where the shelter is intended for day use only, the shelter must provide each program participant in the shelter with an acceptable place to sleep and adequate space and security for the participant(s) and personal belongings.

Interior Air Quality

Each room or space within the shelter must have a natural or mechanical means of ventilation. The interior air must be free of pollutants at a level that might threaten or harm the health of program participants in the shelter.

Water Supply

The shelter's water supply must be free of contamination.

Sanitary Facilities

Each program participant in the shelter must have access to sanitary facilities that are in proper operating condition, are private, and are adequate for personal cleanliness and the disposal of human waste.

Thermal Environment

The shelter must have any necessary heating/cooling facilities in proper operating condition.

Illumination and Electricity

The shelter must have adequate natural or artificial illumination to permit normal indoor activities and support health and safety. There must be sufficient electrical sources to permit the safe use of electrical appliances in the shelter.

Food Preparation

Food preparation areas, if any, must contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare, and serve food in a safe and sanitary manner.

Sanitary Conditions

The shelter must be maintained in a sanitary condition.

Fire Safety

There must be at least one working smoke detector in each occupied unit of the shelter. Where possible, smoke detectors must be located near sleeping areas. The fire alarm system must be designed for hearing-impaired residents. All public areas of the shelter must have at least one working smoke detector. There must also be a second means of exiting the building in the event of fire or other emergency.

The Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program Interim Rule establishes different habitability standards for emergency shelters and for permanent housing (the Rapid Re-housing and Homelessness Prevention components).

Emergency Shelter Standards.

Emergency shelters that receive ESG funds for renovation or shelter operations must meet the minimum standards for safety, sanitation, and privacy provided in §576.403(b).

In addition, emergency shelters that receive ESG funds for renovation (conversion, major rehabilitation, or other renovation) also must meet state or local government safety and sanitation standards, as applicable.

Sub-grant recipients must document compliance with the applicable standards. Note that these checklists do not cover the requirements to comply with the Lead-Based Paint requirements at §576.403(a). For more discussion about how and when the standards apply, see *ESG Minimum Standards for Emergency Shelters and Permanent Housing*, located at http://oneCPD.info/esg.

The checklist below is intended to:

- 1. Provide a clear summary of the requirements and an adaptable tool so recipients and subgrant recipients can formally assess their compliance with HUD requirements, identify and carry out corrective actions, and better prepare for monitoring visits by HUD or OCGS.
- 2. Provide a tool for OCGS to monitor that the sub-grant recipient is in compliance with HUD requirements and OCGS. Where non-compliance is identified, the information provided by this checklist can help the sub-grant recipient make necessary changes.

Prior to beginning this review, the sub-grant recipient should organize relevant files and documents. These may include local or state inspection reports (fire-safety, food preparation, building/occupancy, etc.), or policy and procedure documents related to emergency shelter facility maintenance or renovations.

Carefully read each statement and indicate the shelter's status for each requirement (Yes/No). Add any comments and corrective actions needed in the appropriate box. The reviewer should complete the information about the project, and sign and date the form. When the assessment is complete, review it with program staff and develop an action plan for addressing any areas requiring corrective action.

Minimum Standards for Emergency Shelters

Yes/No	Standard (24 CFR part 576.403(b))
	1. Structure and materials: a. The shelter building is structurally sound to protect the residents from the elements and not pose any threat to the health and safety of the residents. b. Any renovation (including major rehabilitation and conversion) carried out with ESG assistance uses Energy Star and WaterSense products and appliances. 2. Access. Where applicable, the shelter is accessible in accordance with:
	 a. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (29 U.S.C. 794) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 8; b. The Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 100; and c. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12131 et seq.) and 28 CFR part 35.
	3. Space and security: Except where the shelter is intended for day use only, the shelter provides each program participant in the shelter with an acceptable place to sleep and adequate space and security for themselves and their belongings.
	4. Interior air quality: Each room or space within the shelter has a natural or mechanical means of ventilation. The interior air is free of pollutants at a level that might threaten or harm the health of residents.
	5. Water Supply: The shelter's water supply is free of contamination.
	6. Sanitary Facilities: Each program participant in the shelter has access to sanitary facilities that are in proper operating condition, are private, and are adequate for personal cleanliness and the disposal of human waste.
	7. Thermal environment: The shelter has any necessary heating/cooling facilities in proper operating condition.
	 8. Illumination and electricity: a. The shelter has adequate natural or artificial illumination to permit normal indoor activities and support health and safety. b. There are sufficient electrical sources to permit the safe use of electrical appliances in the shelter.
	9. Food preparation: Food preparation areas, if any, contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare, and serve food in a safe and sanitary manner.
	10. Sanitary conditions: The shelter is maintained in a sanitary condition.
_	 11. Fire safety: a. There is at least one working smoke detector in each occupied unit of the shelter. Where possible, smoke detectors are located near sleeping areas. b. All public areas of the shelter have at least one working smoke detector. c. The fire alarm system is designed for hearing-impaired residents. d. There is a second means of exiting the building in the event of fire or other emergency.
	12. If ESG funds were used for renovation or conversion, the shelter meets state or local government safety and sanitation standards, as applicable.
	13. Meets additional State/sub-grant recipient standards (if any).

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

I certify that I have evaluated the plant of the following:	roperty located at the address below to the best of my ability and
Property meets <u>all</u> of the above	e standards.
Property does not meet all of the	ne above standards.
Comments:	
ESG Sub-Grant Recipient Name:	
Emergency Shelter Name:	
Street Address:	
City, State and ZIP Code:	
Evaluator Name:	
Evaluator Signature:	

Appendix 3 - ESG 30% Income Limits							

Appendix 3 - ESG Income Limits

HUD released the FY 2022 Income Limits on April 18, 2022. These limits are found in the 5th section, labeled "HUD 30% Income Limit for ALL Areas," at

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/home.html.

When working with ESG program income limits, please be aware of the following key points:

- Extremely Low Income vs. Area Median Income Limits. The "Extremely Low Income (ELI) families" limits DO NOT APPLY to the ESG program! ESG does not use the ELI measure to establish income limits; instead, ESG uses the 30% of Area Median Income (AMI) standard. If ESG recipients/sub-grant recipients erroneously use the ELI standard, some applicants may be incorrectly deemed eligible for assistance. This may result in rejection of invoices or, if invoices are incorrectly paid, demands for repayment of ESG funds.
 - Under the ESG program, income eligibility is based on the HUD income limits in effect at the time of income verification. Income eligibility is not based on HUD income limits that correspond with the grant year under which the ESG funds were awarded
- Rapid Re-Housing Income Requirements. Please keep in mind for program participants receiving ESG "Rapid Re-Housing" assistance, an income assessment is not required at initial evaluation. At re-evaluation which must take place not less than once annually for rapid re-housing the participant's household must have an annual income that does not exceed 30 percent of median family income for the area, as determined by HUD.
- Homelessness Prevention Income Requirements. The ESG Program interim rule limits eligibility for homelessness prevention assistance to individuals and families with incomes below 30 percent of AMI at intake and incomes that do not exceed 30 percent of AMI at re-evaluation, which must take place not less than once every 3 months.

Resource Links

ESG Income Limits at HUDUSER FY 2022 Income Limits https://www.huduser.gov/portal/home.html

Program: ESG: Emergency Solutions Grants Program https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/5079/esg-income-limits/

Sub-grant recipients may come across the HUD Income Limits Documentation System. That site prompts the user to enter a State and a County and then provides a very convenient table with low, very low, and extremely low incomes. **The HUD Income Limits Documentation System should NOT be used for ESG.**

Only the dataset found at https://www.huduser.gov/portal/home.html will provide the correct income thresholds for each calendar year.

New income limits are provided annually by HUD, but the data release is not synchronized with the ESG grant cycle. When in doubt about the correct income thresholds to use, sub-grant recipients should request clarification from OCGS.



COUGEA	FFY2022 MHI	1-Person Household	2-person Household	3-Person Household	4-Person Household	5-Person Household	6-Person Household	7-Person Household
Arkansas County	\$63,600	\$12,800	\$14,600	\$16,450	\$18,250	\$19,750	\$21,200	\$22,650
Ashley County	\$62,200	\$12,750	\$14,550	\$16,350	\$18,150	\$19,650	\$21,100	\$22,550
Baxter County	\$56,300	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Benton County	\$83,700	\$17,600	\$20,100	\$22,600	\$25,100	\$27,150	\$29,150	\$31,150
Boone County	\$58,900	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Bradley County	\$59,000	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Calhoun County	\$66,200	\$12,950	\$14,800	\$16,650	\$18,500	\$20,000	\$21,500	\$22,950
Carroll County	\$64,100	\$13,200	\$15,100	\$17,000	\$18,850	\$20,400	\$21,900	\$23,400
Chicot County	\$47,200	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Clark County	\$65,300	\$13,750	\$15,700	\$17,650	\$19,600	\$21,200	\$22,750	\$24,350
Clay County	\$56,300	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Cleburne County	\$61,200	\$12,850	\$14,700	\$16,550	\$18,350	\$19,850	\$21,300	\$22,800
Cleveland County	\$60,000	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Columbia County	\$53,400	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Conway County	\$61,200	\$12,850	\$14,700	\$16,550	\$18,350	\$19,850	\$21,300	\$22,800
Craighead County	\$71,100	\$13,850	\$15,800	\$17,800	\$19,750	\$21,350	\$22,950	\$24,500
Crawford County	\$62,600	\$12,750	\$14,600	\$16,400	\$18,200	\$19,700	\$21,150	\$22,600
Crittenden County	\$77,300	\$16,150	\$18,450	\$20,750	\$23,050	\$24,900	\$26,750	\$28,600

*Effective April 18, 2022 Form ESG-IL Page 1 of 5

Cross County	\$67,800	\$13,400	\$15,300	\$17,200	\$19,100	\$20,650	\$22,200	\$23,700
Dallas County	\$57,500	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Desha County	\$46,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Drew County	\$70,600	\$13,300	\$15,200	\$17,100	\$18,950	\$20,500	\$22,000	\$23,500
Faulkner County	\$78,700	\$16,550	\$18,900	\$21,250	\$23,600	\$25,500	\$27,400	\$29,300
Franklin County	\$57,800	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Fulton County	\$51,300	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Garland County	\$60,500	\$12,750	\$14,550	\$16,350	\$18,150	\$19,650	\$21,100	\$22,550
Grant County	\$72,300	\$15,050	\$17,200	\$19,350	\$21,500	\$23,250	\$24,950	\$26,700
Greene County	\$63,000	\$13250	\$15,150	\$17,050	\$18,900	\$20,450	\$21,950	\$23,450
Hempstead County	\$59,400	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Hot Spring County	\$60,200	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Howard County	\$56,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Independence County	\$60,600	\$12,750	\$14,600	\$16,400	\$18,200	\$19,700	\$21,150	\$22,600
Izard County	\$60,400	\$12,700	\$14,500	\$16,300	\$18,100	\$19,550	\$21,000	\$22,450
Jackson County	\$49,200	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Jefferson County	\$60,000	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Johnson County	\$51,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Lafayette County	\$48,600	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Lawrence County	\$56,600	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400

Lee County	\$56,000	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Lincoln County	\$60,000	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Little River County	\$66,500	\$13,450	\$15,400	\$17,300	\$19,200	\$20,750	\$22,300	\$23,850
Logan County	\$54,800	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Lonoke County	\$78,700	\$16,550	\$18,900	\$21,250	\$23,600	\$25,500	\$27,400	\$29,300
Madison County	\$83,700	\$17,600	\$20,100	\$22,600	\$25,100	\$27,150	\$29,150	\$31,150
Marion County	\$51,700	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Miller County	\$71,300	\$14,350	\$16,400	\$18,450	\$20,450	\$22,100	\$23,750	\$25,400
Mississippi County	\$54,500	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Monroe County	\$56,300	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Montgomery County	\$52,600	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Nevada County	\$50,400	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Newton County	\$57,400	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Ouachita County	\$53,800	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Perry County	\$78,700	\$16,550	\$18,900	\$21,250	\$23,600	\$25,500	\$27,400	\$29,300
Phillips County	\$43,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Pike County	\$57,600	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Poinsett County	\$55,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Polk County	\$49,300	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Pope County	\$60,900	\$12,750	\$14,550	\$16,350	\$18,150	\$19,650	\$21,100	\$22,550

Prairie County	\$62,300	\$12,750	\$14,450	\$16,350	\$18,150	\$19,650	\$21,100	\$22,550
Pulaski County	\$78,700	\$16,550	\$18,900	\$21,250	\$23,600	\$25,500	\$27,400	\$29,300
Randolph County	\$49,600	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
St. Francis County	\$47,900	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Saline County	\$78,700	\$16,550	\$18,900	\$21,250	\$23,600	\$25,500	\$27,400	\$29,300
Scott County	\$52,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Searcy County	\$48,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Sebastian County	\$62,600	\$12,750	\$14,600	\$16,400	\$18,200	\$19,700	\$21,150	\$22,600
Sevier County	\$61,200	\$12,850	\$14,700	\$16,550	\$18,350	\$19,850	\$21,300	\$22,800
Sharp County	\$49,100	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Stone County	\$55,000	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Union County	\$62,400	\$13,100	\$15,000	\$16,850	\$18,700	\$20,200	\$21,700	\$23,200
Van Buren County	\$53,500	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Washington County	\$83,700	\$17,600	\$20,100	\$22,600	\$25,100	\$27,150	\$29,150	\$31,150
White County	\$60,900	\$12,800	\$14,600	\$16,450	\$18,250	\$19,750	\$21,200	\$22,650
Woodruff County	\$59,000	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400
Yell County	\$56,500	\$12,650	\$14,450	\$16,250	\$18,050	\$19,500	\$20,950	\$22,400

These are 30% Income Limits, calculated with high and low housing cost adjustments, state non-metropolitan minimum but without the increases for poverty guidelines in the Section 8 Extremely Low Family Incomes.

Under the ESG program, income eligibility is based on the HUD income limits in effect at the time of income verification.

Income eligibility is not based on HUD income limits that correspond with the grant year under which the ESG funds were awarded.

Participant Name	Household Size			
HMIS #	Household Income			
County Name	ESG Income Threshold			
	Does this Participant / Household Qualify for ESG?	YES	NO	
	Approved By:		Provider Printed Nam	20
		r	Tovider Printed Nam	ie
			Provider Signature	

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/il.html#2022 data

ppendix 4 - Minimum Habitability of Standards for Permanent Housi	ng

Appendix 4 - Minimum Habitability Standards for Permanent Housing

Instructions: Place a check mark in the correct column to indicate whether the property is approved or deficient with respect to each standard. The property must meet all standards in order to be approved. A copy of this checklist should be placed in the client file.

Yes / No	Standard (24 CFR part 576.403(c))
	1. Structure and materials: The structure is structurally sound to protect the residents from the elements and not pose any threat to the health and safety of the residents.
	2. Space and security: Each resident is provided adequate space and security for themselves and their belongings. Each resident is provided an acceptable place to sleep.
	3. Interior air quality: Each room or space has a natural or mechanical means of ventilation. The interior air is free of pollutants at a level that might threaten or harm the health of residents.
	4. Water Supply: The water supply is free from contamination.
	5. Sanitary Facilities: Residents have access to sufficient sanitary facilities that are in proper operating condition, are private, and are adequate for personal cleanliness and the disposal of human waste.
	6. Thermal environment: The housing has any necessary heating/cooling facilities in proper operating condition.
	7. Illumination and electricity: The structure has adequate natural or artificial illumination to permit normal indoor activities and support health and safety. There are sufficient electrical sources to permit the safe use of electrical appliances in the structure.
	8. Food preparation: All food preparation areas contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare, and serve food in a safe and sanitary manner.
	9. Sanitary condition: The housing is maintained in sanitary condition.
	 10. Fire Safety: a. There is a second means of exiting the building in the event of fire or other emergency. b. The unit includes at least one battery-operated or hard-wired smoke detector, in proper working condition, on each occupied level of the unit. Smoke detectors are located, to the extent practicable, in a hallway adjacent to a bedroom. c. If the unit is occupied by hearing-impaired persons, smoke detectors have an alarm system designed for hearing-impaired persons in each bedroom occupied by a hearing-impaired person. d. The public areas are equipped with a sufficient number, but not less than one for each area, of battery-operated or hard-wired smoke detectors. Public areas include, but are

	not limited to, laundry rooms, day care centers, hallways, stairwells, and other common areas.		
Minimum Habitability Standards for Permanent Housing (Continued)			
Yes / No	Standard (24 CFR part 576.403(c))		
	11. Meets additional Sate and/or local requirements, if any.		
CERTIFICATIO	ON STATEMENT		
I certify that I have evaluated the property located at the address below to the best of my ability and find the following:			
Property meets <u>all</u> of the above standards.			
Property does not meet all of the above standards.			
Comments			
ESG Sub-Gra	ant Recipient Name:		
Program Pai	Program Participant Name:		
Street Addre	ess:		
Apartment #	#:		
City, State a	nd ZIP Code:		
Inspector's I	Name:		

Inspector's Signature:

Appendix 5 - ESG Monitoring Guide	

Appendix 6 - Required ESG Forms

The following forms are included in this Section and are REQUIRED when submitting reimbursement requests for case management, any Rapid Re-Housing cost, or any Homelessness Prevention cost.

- ESG-TS
- ESG-TS Instructions
- ESG-ELIG
- ESG-ELIG Instructions
- ESG-FMR
- ESG-FMR Instructions
- ESG-RR
- ESG-RR Instructions
- ESG-HAB
- ESG-LBP
- ESG-LBP Instructions
- ESG-RAA
- ESG-RAA Instructions
- ESG-IL
- ESG-IL Instructions

The FMR Form (Form ESG-FMR) and Income Limits Form (Form ESG-IL) are provided as references only and include all relevant data for the entire State of Arkansas. Actual usage forms will be provided to sub-recipients at the start of each sub-grant performance period and will be reduced to only those counties within the specific service areas of each sub-recipient.

rr-rrs PPGt: rs rr IT[:RIT[0 r IP [J_r [:[=T

REGULAR ESG AND ESG COVID-19 CASE MANAGEMENT TIMESHEET

Agency Name →				Bil	lable ESG Hrs	Ot	her Programs			ESG Charges
					<u> </u>		<u> </u>			<u> </u>
				SO-REG	0.00	OP1	0.00	SO-REG		-
Week Ending →				ES-REG	0.00	OP2	0.00	ES-REG		-
		1		RRH-REG	0.00	OP3	0.00	RRH-REG		-
Employee Name →				HP-REG	0.00	OP4	0.00	HP-REG		-
				HMIS-REG	0.00	OP5	0.00	HMIS-REG		-
Pay Rate / Hr →	\$			ADMIN-REG	0.00	OP6	0.00			-
				SO-CV19		OP Total Hrs	0.00			-
				ES-CV19	0.00			ES-CV19		-
				RRH-CV19	0.00			RRH-CV19		-
				HP-CV19	0.00			HP-CV19		-
				HMIS-CV19	0.00			HMIS-CV19		-
				ADMIN-CV19	0.00			ADMIN-CV19	\$	-
					0.00	← Total Hrs/Wk				
					ESG Hours (to nearest 0.25 hr)					
Other Program (OP) F	NTRIES STARTS ON LINE 34			S	М	Т	W	TH	F	S
other riogram (or) 2			Date	>						
		Billing	Program	-						
Client Name / ID	Activity	Code	Type							
Formula of the state of the sta						c' ·				
Employee Signature					Supervi	sor Signature				

Page 1 of 2

PURPOSE

The **regular ESG and ESG COVID-19 Case Management Timesheet** is the Provider's documentation of employee hours charged against the Emergency Solutions Grant and Other Program activities. The timesheet must reflect 100% of his/her working hours.

This form is required whenever reimbursement with ESG funds is requested for employee pay.

COMPLETION

The timesheet must be completed in accordance with the agency's guidelines. The form must be signed by the employee and the employee's supervisor.

Agency Name: Enter the sub-recipient/Provider.

Week Ending: Enter the ending date of the week covered by the timesheet.

Employee Name: Enter the name of the employee.

Pay Rate: Enter the pay rate for the employee. This pay rate should include any covered fringe benefits. Only the calculated "ESG Charges" will be reimbursable.

Client Name/ID: In this field enter the client's name or HMIS ID # of the Participant(s) receiving Case Management.

Activity: Enter the specific service(s) (Case Management activities) provided.

Billing Code: Select the appropriate component from the drop-down menu.

- For Street Outreach Case Management, select "SO-REG." or "SO-CV19"
- For Emergency Shelter Case Management, select "ES-REG." or "ES-CV19"
- For Rapid Re-Housing Housi8ng Stability Case Management, select "RRH-REG." or "RRH-CV19"
- For Homelessness Prevention Housing Stability Case Management, select "HP-REG." or "HP-CV19"
- For HMIS data Entry, select "HMIS-REG." or "HMIS-CV19"
- For ADMIN, select "ADMIN-REG." or "ADMIN-CV19"

Date (S/M/T/W/TH/F/S): Enter the dates of the workweek, Sunday through Saturday, in the format MM/DD

Enter hours worked for each Billing Code row under each Date column

The "ESG Charges" section in the upper right-hand corner will display the sum total of charges that may be billed to ESG for each component.

OTHER PROGRAM(s): (Only for the employee that work ESG/COVID and other programs) Beginning on line 34 of the timesheet is where information regarding programs other than ESG will be entered. Under billing code

Page 2 of 2

in the dropdown box, OP is the only selection. Enter or abbreviate the name of the program in the column under Program Type. This section identifies an employee's salary that is being paid from other programs. Enter the daily hours worked. These hours will be identified under Other Programs at the top of the form. (The hours will automatically calculate).

Employee Signature: The employee must sign the form

Supervisor's Signature: The employee's immediate supervisor must sign the form.

ROUTING

This form must be submitted with each request for payroll reimbursement.

If additional lines are needed to complete your time, <u>do not</u> insert additional lines, use another timesheet and write/type page 2 at the top right corner.

Partic	ipant Na	ame: HMIS #
Particip	oant is <i>li</i>	iterally homeless, meaning:
		An individual or family with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, abandoned building, bus or train station, airport, or camping ground;
	ii.	An individual or family living in a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary living arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, state, or local government programs for low-income individuals); or
	iii.	An individual who is exiting an institution where he or she resided for 90 days or less and who resided i an emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately before entering that institution.
	Literal	lly homeless participants are eligible for Street Outreach, Emergency Shelter, and Rapid Re-Housing.
Particip	oant is a	at risk of homelessness, meaning an individual or family who:
2.	lacks s emerg	annual income below 30 percent of median family income for the area (as documented on Form ESG-IL) ufficient, immediately available resources or support networks to prevent them from moving to an ency shelter or another place described in paragraph (1) of the HUD "homeless" definition in §576.2; neets one of the following conditions:
	A.	Has moved because of economic reasons two or more times during the 60 days immediately preceding the application for homelessness prevention assistance;
	В.	Is living in the home of another because of economic hardship;
	C.	Has been notified in writing that their right to occupy their current housing or living situation will be terminated within 21 days after the date of application for assistance;
	D.	Lives in a hotel or motel and the cost of the hotel or motel stay is not paid by charitable organizations or by Federal, State, or local government programs for low-income individuals;
	E.	Lives in a single-room occupancy or efficiency apartment unit in which there reside more than two persons or lives in a larger housing unit in which there reside more than 1.5 persons reside per room, as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau;
	F.	Is exiting a publicly funded institution, or system of care (such as a health-care facility, a mental health facility, foster care or other youth facility, or correction program or institution); or
	G.	Otherwise lives in housing that has characteristics associated with instability and an increased risk of homelessness, as identified in the recipient's approved consolidated plan.

Participants at risk of homelessness are eligible for Homelessness Prevention.

Participant is *fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence*, meaning:

- i. Participant Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or a family member, including a child, that has either taken place within the individual's or family's primary nighttime residence or has made the individual or family afraid to return to their primary nighttime residence;
- ii. Has no other residence; and
- iii. Lacks the resources or support networks, e.g., family, friends, faith-based or other social networks, to obtain other permanent housing.

Participants who are fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence are eligible for Shelter, RRH and HP.

Verifying homeless status is a core provider responsibility, and sub-recipients are required to document eligibility at program entry, even for emergency shelters. For RRH and HP assistance funded under the ESG Program, the interim rule establishes the following order of priority for obtaining evidence:

- 1. Third-party documentation, including written and source documentation, and HMIS records;
- 2. Intake worker observations;
- 3. Certification from persons seeking assistance.

Please indicate the type of documentation <u>on file</u> (do not submit the additional documentation with the invoice) to support this certification:

Third party documentation (preferred method)
Provider observation
**Client self-certification (with certification form)

CERTIFICATION

l certif	y that to the best of my knowledge and belief all	of the information on this form is correct.
Printed Name		
Title		
Agency		
Signature		Date

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ESG-ELIG PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY FORM (ESG-ELIG)

PURPOSE

The ESG-ELIG is the Provider's certification to OCGS that the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program Participant is eligible for the assistance and/or services provided. This form must be completed and submitted with an ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for assistance and/or services provided to the Program Participant.

This form is required only during the initial month of assistance and/or service. A copy of this form, and all documents supporting the information on this form, should be maintained by the Provider in the Program Participant's case file.

COMPLETION

Introduction: The Provider should complete this form. When completed, the Provider should thoroughly review all information before certifying that the information is correct.

Program Participant's Name and HMIS #: Enter the Program Participant's name and Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) number. Domestic Violence Services Providers (DVSPs) will enter the number assigned by the comparable data system used instead of HMIS. For confidentiality purposes, DVSPs may leave the name blank and enter only the HMIS (or comparable) number.

Participant is *literally homeless,* meaning: If the Participant is literally homeless, check the box corresponding to the applicable definition. If the Participant is NOT literally homeless, do not check any of the boxes.

Participant is *at risk of homelessness*, **meaning:** If the Participant at risk of homelessness, check the box corresponding to the applicable definition. If the Participant is NOT at risk of homelessness, do not check any of the boxes.

Participant is *fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence*, meaning: If the Participant is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence, check this box. If the Participant is NOT fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence, do not check this box.

Please indicate the type of documentation on file: Check the box corresponding to the type of documentation in the Provider's file for this Participant to support this certification.

Certification: Enter the Provider/caseworker's name, title, and organization. Print, sign and date the form.

ROUTING

This form must be submitted with the first ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for assistance and/or services provided to this Participant. This form is not required when reimbursement is requested for this same Participant in subsequent months. Place a copy of this form in the Participant's file.

Alternate formats (large print, audio tape, etc.) will be provided upon request.

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



FY2023 RENTS FOR ALL BEDROOM SIZES

	Efficiency	One-Bedroom	Two Bedroon	Three Bedroom	Four-Bedroom
Arkansas County	\$509	\$578	\$761	\$926	\$1,110
Ashley County	\$594	\$597	\$720	\$876	\$1,226
Baxter County	\$599	\$603	\$794	\$981	\$1,130
Benton County	\$720	\$764	\$930	\$1,322	\$1,582
Boone County	\$539	\$594	\$720	\$1,023	\$1,084
Bradley County	\$539	\$568	\$720	\$1,005	\$1,226
Calhoun County	\$608	\$617	\$812	\$988	\$1,155
Carroll County	\$485	\$552	\$726	\$884	\$975
Chicot County	\$543	\$547	\$720	\$976	\$1,226
Clark County	\$552	\$629	\$720	\$1,006	\$1,130
Clay County	\$543	\$547	\$720	\$917	\$1,154
Cleburne County	\$583	\$591	\$778	\$949	\$1,045
Cleveland County	\$580	\$619	\$815	\$1,026	\$1,095
Columbia County	\$543	\$547	\$720	\$964	\$967
Conway County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$1,002	\$1,105
Craighead County	\$562	\$665	\$840	\$1,088	\$1,431
Crawford County	\$601	\$605	\$797	\$1,102	\$1,270
Crittenden County	\$800	\$902	\$1,032	\$1,365	\$1,584
Cross County	\$554	\$561	\$739	\$1,034	\$1,259
Dallas County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$1,023	\$1,024
Desha County	\$539	\$566	\$720	\$979	\$1,226
Drew County	\$570	\$578	\$761	\$933	\$1,112
Faulkner County	\$791	\$805	\$920	\$1,227	\$1,468

^[1] Effective October 1, 2022.

^[2] https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html



FY2023 RENTS FOR ALL BEDROOM SIZES

	Efficiency	One-Bedroom	Two Bedroon	Three Bedroom	Four-Bedroom
Franklin County	\$581	\$588	\$720	\$887	\$1,226
Fulton County	\$481	\$547	\$720	\$1,000	\$1,167
Garland County	\$646	\$673	\$879	\$1,088	\$1,424
Grant County	\$679	\$691	\$789	\$1,005	\$1,256
Greene County	\$556	\$646	\$742	\$1,055	\$1,081
Hempstead County	\$575	\$583	\$768	\$998	\$1,238
Hot Spring County	\$535	\$557	\$733	\$977	\$1,193
Howard County	\$489	\$563	\$720	\$882	\$967
Independence County	\$544	\$552	\$726	\$950	\$975
Izard County	\$539	\$585	\$720	\$929	\$1,024
Jackson County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$876	\$1,024
Jefferson County	\$580	\$619	\$815	\$1,026	\$1,095
Johnson County	\$547	\$555	\$730	\$970	\$981
Lafayette County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$876	\$1,024
Lawrence County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$957	\$1,134
Lee County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$1,023	\$1,024
Lincoln County	\$580	\$619	\$815	\$1,026	\$1,095
Little River County	\$543	\$547	\$720	\$1,023	\$1,226
Logan County	\$507	\$637	\$720	\$996	\$1,016
Lonoke County	\$791	\$805	\$920	\$1,227	\$1,468
Madison County	\$720	\$764	\$930	\$1,322	\$1,582
Marion County	\$546	\$554	\$729	\$887	\$979
Miller County	\$704	\$709	\$890	\$1,109	\$1,444

^[1] Effective October 1, 2022.

^[2] https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html



FY2023 RENTS FOR ALL BEDROOM SIZES

	Efficiency	One-Bedroom	Two Bedroon	Three Bedroom	Four-Bedroom
Mississippi County	\$532	\$568	\$720	\$964	\$967
Monroe County	\$481	\$547	\$720	\$945	\$1,024
Montgomery County	\$539	\$637	\$720	\$993	\$1,226
Nevada County	\$616	\$625	\$823	\$1,002	\$1,171
Newton County	\$539	\$605	\$720	\$884	\$1,226
Ouachita County	\$624	\$630	\$720	\$964	\$967
Perry County	\$791	\$805	\$920	\$1,227	\$1,468
Phillips County	\$539	\$554	\$720	\$1,023	\$1,226
Pike County	\$539	\$579	\$720	\$940	\$1,120
Poinsett County	\$543	\$547	\$720	\$892	\$967
Polk County	\$505	\$579	\$756	\$920	\$1,115
Pope County	\$560	\$596	\$748	\$1,054	\$1,092
Prairie County	\$561	\$569	\$749	\$912	\$1,065
Pulaski County	\$791	\$805	\$920	\$1,227	\$1,468
Randolph County	\$624	\$637	\$720	\$980	\$1,226
St. Francis County	\$571	\$575	\$720	\$1,023	\$1,041
Saline County	\$791	\$805	\$920	\$1,227	\$1,468
Scott County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$911	\$1,024
Searcy County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$930	\$1,024
Sebastian County	\$601	\$605	\$797	\$1,102	\$1,270
Sevier County	\$539	\$600	\$720	\$962	\$1,030
Sharp County	\$525	\$571	\$720	\$879	\$1,126
Stone County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$1,023	\$1,024

^[1] Effective October 1, 2022.

^[2] https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html



FY2023 RENTS FOR ALL BEDROOM SIZES

	Efficiency	One-Bedroom	Two Bedroon	Three Bedroom	Four-Bedroom
Union County	\$638	\$642	\$764	\$1,068	\$1,095
Van Buren County	\$500	\$547	\$720	\$879	\$967
Washington County	\$720	\$764	\$930	\$1,322	\$1,582
White County	\$503	\$596	\$739	\$998	\$1,246
Woodruff County	\$539	\$547	\$720	\$951	\$1,024
Yell County	\$539	\$574	\$720	\$964	\$1,024

The FMRs for unit sizes larger than four bedrooms are calculated by adding 15 percent to the four bedroom FMR, for each extra bedroom. For example, the FMR for a five bedroom unit is 1.15 times the four bedroom FMR, and the FMR for a six bedroom unit is 1.30 times the four bedroom FMR. FMRs for single-room occupancy units are 0.75 times the zero bedroom (efficiency) FMR.

Client Name	County			
HMIS#	Street Address			
Household Size	Apartment #			
Unit # of Bedrooms:	City, State, ZIP			
FMR:				
Unit Rent + Utility Allowance :				
Does this unit comply v	vith the HUD FMR Standard?	YES	NO	
	Approved By:			
			Provider Printed Name	
			Provider Signature	

^[1] Effective October 1, 2022.

^[2] https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ESG-FMR FAIR MARKET RENT FORM (ESG-FMR)

PURPOSE

The ESG-FMR is the Provider's documentation that the Rental Assistance provided to the Program Participant was used for a unit compliant with HUD's applicable Fair Market Rent standard. This form must be completed and submitted with an ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for Rental Assistance provided to the Program Participant.

This form is required only during the initial month of Rental Assistance. A copy of this form, and all documents supporting the information on this form, should be maintained by the Provider in the Program Participant's case file.

COMPLETION

Introduction: The Provider should complete this form. When completed, the Provider should thoroughly review all information before indicating that the unit complies with the FMR standard.

Client Name: Enter the Program Participant's name. For confidentiality purposes, Domestic Violence Services Providers (DVSPs) may leave the name blank and enter only the HMIS (or comparable) number.

HMIS #: Enter the Program Participant's Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) number. Domestic Violence Services Providers (DVSP) will enter the number assigned by the comparable data system used instead of HMIS.

Household Size: Enter the total number of persons in the Participant's household.

Unit # of Bedrooms: Enter the number of bedrooms in the rental unit.

County, Street Address, City, ZIP: Self-explanatory.

FMR: Enter the HUD FMR for the selected unit size in the county in which the unit is located.

Unit Rent + Utility Allowance: Enter the sum of the unit's monthly rent plus the utility allowances (from the local Public Housing Authority) of all utilities for which <u>the Participant</u> is responsible. Do not include utility allowances for utilities provided by the landlord.

Does this unit comply with...: Indicate whether or not the unit complies with the HUD FMR standard.

Approved by: The Caseworker should print and sign the form.

ROUTING

This form must be submitted with the first ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for Rental Assistance provided to this Participant. This form is not required when reimbursement is requested for this same Participant in subsequent months. Place a copy of this form in the Participant's file.

Alternate formats (large print, audio tape, etc.) will be provided upon request.

T[-f[§ PPG!: **r**S r **r** IT!:[\ITIOr 1/i,[J_'{ [_[:FT] B [_fi | 'r 1/

To verify that the rent for the unit is reasonable, compare it to similar units in the complex or neighborhood.

"Similar" units must be of the same type and have the same number of bedrooms.

The selected unit's rent should not exceed the rent for similar units, but providers may certainly take factors such as accessibility, general condition and utility expenses into consideration.

This or other Rent Reasonableness documentation must be submitted with RRH and HP Rental Assistance invoices.

	Selected Unit	Unit #1	Unit #2	Unit #3
Address of Unit:				
Type of Unit: (Check only <u>one</u>)	☐ Apt. 1-4 Floors ☐ Apt. 5+ Floors ☐ Duplex/Townhouse ☐ Mfg Home ☐ Single Family ☐ Other:	☐ Apt. 1-4 Floors ☐ Apt. 5+ Floors ☐ Duplex/Townhouse ☐ Mfg Home ☐ Single Family ☐ Other:	☐ Apt. 1-4 Floors ☐ Apt. 5+ Floors ☐ Duplex/Townhouse ☐ Mfg Home ☐ Single Family ☐ Other:	☐ Apt. 1-4 Floors ☐ Apt. 5+ Floors ☐ Duplex/Townhouse ☐ Mfg Home ☐ Single Family ☐ Other:
Number of Bedrooms:				
Square Footage:				
General Condition:				
Location/Accessibility (Check <u>all</u> that apply)	☐ Schools ☐ Bus Route ☐ Medical ☐ Library ☐ Park ☐ Other:	☐ Schools ☐ Bus Route ☐ Medical ☐ Library ☐ Park ☐ Other:	☐ Schools ☐ Bus Route ☐ Medical ☐ Library ☐ Park ☐ Other:	☐ Schools ☐ Bus Route ☐ Medical ☐ Library ☐ Park ☐ Other:
Amenities: (Check <u>all</u> that apply)	□ Air Conditioner □ Garbage Disposal □ Dishwasher □ Washer/Dryer □ Carpet □ Rec Facilities. □ Storage Areas □ Parking □ Maintenance Service □ Housing Services □ Other:	□ Air Conditioner □ Garbage Disposal □ Dishwasher □ Washer/Dryer □ Carpet □ Rec Facilities. □ Storage Areas □ Parking □ Maintenance Service □ Housing Services □ Other:	☐ Air Conditioner ☐ Garbage Disposal ☐ Dishwasher ☐ Washer/Dryer ☐ Carpet ☐ Rec Facilities. ☐ Storage Areas ☐ Parking ☐ Maintenance Service ☐ Housing Services ☐ Other:	□ Air Conditioner □ Garbage Disposal □ Dishwasher □ Washer/Dryer □ Carpet □ Rec Facilities. □ Storage Areas □ Parking □ Maintenance Service □ Housing Services □ Other:

	_							
(Cont'd)	Selected Unit	Unit #1	Unit #2	Unit #3				
Approximate year built:								
Utilities	☐ Gas ☐ Paid ☐ Unpaid ☐ Water ☐ Cable/Internet	☐ Gas ☐ Paid ☐ Unpaid ☐ Water ☐ Cable/Internet	☐ Gas ☐ Paid ☐ Unpaid ☐ Water ☐ Cable/Internet	☐ Gas ☐ Paid ☐ Unpaid ☐ Water ☐ Cable/Internet				
Unit Rent								
+ Utility Allowance								
= Gross Rent								
Handicap Accessible?	☐ Yes ☐ No	☐ Yes ☐ No	☐ Yes ☐ No	☐ Yes ☐ No				
Participant's Name HMIS#		Stree	County et Address					
		Apartmer	nt Number					
Required # of Bed	rooms:	City,	State, ZIP					
CERTIFICATIONS								
Part A. Comparison wi	th Fair Market Rent							
Proposed Gross Rent		able FMR <i>MR Chart)</i>	Does this unit comp the HUD FMR Sta					
Part B. Rent Reasonab	leness							
Based upon a comparisor ☐ is ☐ is not reasona	n with rents for comparable ble.	e units, I have determined t	hat the proposed rent for t	he unit				
I certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief all of the information on this form is correct.								
Printed Name								

Date

Title

Agency

Signature

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ESG-RR RENT REASONABLENESS AND FAIR MARKET RENT CERTIFICATION

PURPOSE

The ESG-RR is the Provider's certification to OCGS that the Rental Assistance being provided to the Program Participant is reasonable for the area in which the rental unit is located. It also serves as a secondary verification that the unit complies with HUD's Fair Market Rent standard. This form must be completed and submitted with ESG invoices that request reimbursement for Rental Assistance provided to the Program Participant.

This form is required only during the initial month of Rental Assistance. A copy of this form, and all documents supporting the information on this form, should be maintained by the Provider in the Program Participant's case file.

COMPLETION

Introduction: The Provider should complete this form. When completed, the Provider should thoroughly review all information before certifying that the information is correct.

The following information must be entered for the rental unit selected with the Participant and for three units similar to the one selected.

Address of Unit: Enter the street address, city and ZIP code of the unit.

Type of Unit: Select the appropriate box for the type of unit.

Number of Bedrooms: Enter the number of bedrooms in the unit.

Square Footage: Enter the approximate size of the unit in square feet.

General Condition: Enter the general condition of the unit. Use the terms "Excellent," "Good," and "Fair."

Location/Accessibility: Check the box(es) for all applicable location/accessibility considerations.

Amenities: Check the box(es) for all applicable amenity considerations.

Utilities: Check the appropriate boxes for unit utilities, then check the box to indicate whether utilities are provided by the landlord or are the responsibility of the Participant.

Rent: Calculate the Gross Rent by summing the base rent and utility allowances for all utilities not provided by the landlord.

Handicap Accessibility: Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not the unit is handicap accessible.

Participant's Name: Enter the Program Participant's name. For confidentiality purposes, DVSPs may leave the name blank and enter only the HMIS (or comparable) number.

HMIS #: Enter the Program Participant's Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) number. Domestic Violence Services Providers (DVSP) will enter the number assigned by the comparable data system used instead of HMIS.

Required # of Bedrooms: Enter the number of bedrooms required by the Participant's household.

ESG-FMR INSTRUCTIONS (10/2020)

County: Enter the name of the county in which the unit is located.

Street Address: Enter the street address of the unit.

Apartment Number: If applicable, enter the apartment number. If there is no apartment number, leave this field blank.

City, State, ZIP: Enter the City, State and ZIP code of the unit.

Certifications, Part A: Enter the Proposed Gross Rent that was calculated in the Rent section above. Enter the allowable FMR, and check the box to indicate whether or not the unit complies with the HUD FMR standard.

Certifications, Part B: Check the box to indicate whether or not the rent is reasonable.

Certification: Enter the Provider/caseworker's name and title, and organization. Print, sign and date the form.

ROUTING

This form must be submitted with the first ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for Rental Assistance provided to this Participant. This form is not required when reimbursement is requested for this same Participant in subsequent months. Place a copy of this form in the Participant's file.

Alternate formats (large print, audio tape, etc.) will be provided upon request.

ESG Minimum Habitability Standards for Permanent Housing

Minimum Standards for Permanent Housing

Instructions: Place a check mark in the correct column to indicate whether the property is approved or deficient with respect to each standard. The property must meet all standards in order to be approved. A copy of this checklist should be placed in the client file.

Approved	Deficient	Standard (24 CFR part 576.403(c))
		Structure and materials: The structure is structurally sound to protect the residents from the elements and not pose any threat to the health and safety of the residents.
		Space and security: Each resident is provided adequate space and security for themselves and their belongings. Each resident is provided an acceptable place to sleep.
		3. Interior air quality: Each room or space has a natural or mechanical means of ventilation. The interior air is free of pollutants at a level that might threaten or harm the health of residents.
		4. Water Supply: The water supply is free from contamination.
		5. Sanitary Facilities: Residents have access to sufficient sanitary facilities that arein proper operating condition, are private, and are adequate for personal cleanliness and the disposal of human waste.
		6. Thermal environment: The housing has any necessary heating/cooling facilities in proper operating condition.
		7. Illumination and electricity: The structure has adequate natural or artificial illumination to permit normal indoor activities and support health and safety. There are sufficient electrical sources to permit the safe use of electrical appliances in the structure.
		8. Food preparation: All food preparation areas contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare, and serve food in a safe and sanitary manner.
		9. Sanitary condition: The housing is maintained in sanitary condition.
		 10. Fire safety: a. There is a second means of exiting the building in the event of fire or other emergency. b. The unit includes at least one battery-operated or hard-wired smoke detector, in proper working condition, on each occupied level of the unit. Smoke detectors are located, to the extent practicable, in a hallway adjacent to a bedroom. c. If the unit is occupied by hearing-impaired persons, smoke detectors have an alarm system designed for hearing-impaired persons in each bedroom occupied by a hearing-impaired person. d. The public areas are equipped with a sufficient number, but not less
		than one for each area, of battery-operated or hard-wired smoke detectors. Public areas include, but are not limited to, laundry rooms, day care centers, hallways, stairwells, and other common areas. 11. Meets additional recipient/subrecipient standards (if any).

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

find the following:							
O Property meets of the above standards.							
O Property does not meet all of the above standards.							
Comments							
ESG Sub-Grant Recipient Name:							
Program Participant Name:							
Street Address:							
Apartment#:							
City, State and ZIP Code:							
Evaluator Name:							
Evaluator Signature:							

I certify that I have evaluated the property located at the address below to the best of my ability and

Instructions

To prevent lead-poisoning in young children, ESG sub-grant recipients must comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act of 1973 and its applicable regulations at 24 CFR 35, Parts A, B, M, and R. Under certain circumstances, a visual assessment of the unit is not required. This form will help ESG sub-recipients determine whether a unit is subject to a visual assessment and, if so, how to proceed.

A copy of the completed form with any related documentation should be kept in each program participant's file.

Note: ALL pre-1978 properties are subject to the disclosure requirements outlined in 24 CFR 35, Part A, regardless of whether or not they are exempt from the visual assessment requirements.

	Basic Information							
Name o	of Participa	nt						
Address	s Un	it Number						
City	State	Zip						
ESG Pro	ogram Staff							
If the a	nswer to <u>o</u>	isual Assess ne or both of the urther action is r	following quest	ions is 'no,' a vi	sual assessment is <u>NOT</u> triggered for			
	<u> </u>	<u>ot</u> h of these ques uld continue to F	•	en a visual asse	ssment <u>IS</u> triggered for this unit, and			
1.	Was the le	eased property co	onstructed before	e 1978?				
2.	Will a child assistance Yes No	_	of six be living in t	he unit occupie	d by the household receiving ESG			
Compl	eted by:	(prin	t name)	Signature: _				
				-	(date)			

Part 2: Visual Risk Assessment

For pre-1978 housing with a child age 6 or under who has identified Environmental Intervention Blood lead Level.

Date o	f visual assessment:		
1.	Were lead-based paint hazards found?		
	Yes		
	∐ No		
2.	If found, was the participant provided with a cop Home" (Clearinghouse document #055-000-0050		amily from Lead in Your
	Yes		
	No		
	If lead-based paint hazards were found, provide lead-based paint hazards.	a brief summary of	the types and location of the
Co	ompleted by:	Signature:	
	(print name)		
		_	(date)
"I a	am aware that lead-based paint hazards have bee	n identified in this u	ınit and have received an
	A-approved information pamphlet on identifying a		
"Pr	rotect Your Family From Lead In Your Home" pamp	ohlet).	
	printed name of ESG Program Participant)	(signature)
ι,		(Signature	,
	•	(date)	

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ESG-LBP SUMMARY NOTICE OF LEAD-BASED PAINT RISK ASSESSMENT

PURPOSE

The ESG-LBP is the Provider's documentation that lead-based paint hazards were assessed and that the Participant was provided with information on the hazards associated with lead-based paint.

This form is required only during the initial month of assistance/services provided to a Participant. A copy of this form, and all documents supporting the information on this form, should be maintained by the Provider in the Program Participant's case file.

COMPLETION

Introduction: The Provider should complete this form. When completed, the Provider should thoroughly review all information before signing.

Name of Participant: Enter the Program Participant's name. For confidentiality purposes, DVSPs may leave the name blank and enter only the HMIS (or comparable) number.

Address: Enter the street address of the unit.

City, State, ZIP: Enter the city, state and ZIP code of the unit address.

ESG Program Staff: Enter the name of the Provider staff person conducting the assessment.

Was the leased property constructed before 1978? Select either the "Yes" or "No" box.

Will a child under the age of six be living in the unit? Select either the "Yes" or "No" box.

If the answer to one or both of the questions above was "No,' then enter the Provider/inspector's name. Print, sign and date the form using blue ink.

If the answer to both of the questions above was "Yes,' then a visual lead assessment is required.

Date of visual assessment. Enter the date of the visual assessment...

Were lead-based paint hazards found? Check the box to indicate whether or not lead-based paint was found in the unit.

If found, was the participant provided with a copy of: Check the box to indicate whether or not the Participant was provided with the EPA Lead-Based Paint bulletin.

If lead-based paint hazards were found, provide a brief summary of the types and location of the lead-based paint hazards: Briefly describe the types and location of the lead-based paint hazards observed.

Signatures: The Provider/Inspector and the Program Participant must both sign this form.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ESG-LBP SUMMARY NOTICE OF LEAD-BASED PAINT RISK ASSESSMENT

Page 2 of 2

ROUTING

This form must be submitted with the first ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for Assistance or Services provided to this Participant. This form is not required when reimbursement is requested for this same Participant in subsequent months. Place a copy of this form in the Participant's file.

Alternate formats (large print, audio tape, etc.) will be provided upon request.

This Rental Assistance Agreement is entered into on (MM/DD/YYYY) by and between (Apartment Complex or Landlord) ("LESSOR") and (ESG Sub-Recipient) ("PROVIDER").

PROVIDER receives federal funds through the Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) program to provide tenet-based rental assistance to individuals or families who are literally homeless, in imminent risk of homelessness, or fleeing/attempting to flee domestic violence.⁹

Based on each individual program criteria, **LESSOR** agrees to:

- Provide program participant with a clean, safe housing unit that is well maintained.
- Follow federal Fair Housing regulations
- Follow state residential agreement laws and regulations
- Accept payment in the form of a check drawn upon PROVIDER's account
- Deliver a completed W-9 form to PROVIDER
- If security deposit is made by **PROVIDER**, then:
 - Upon move, deliver to PROVIDER an accounting of the charges deducted from the security deposit
 - o If applicable, return any security deposit funds to the program participant
- Deliver to **PROVIDER** a copy of any notice to the program participant to vacate the housing unit or any complaint used under state or local law to commence an eviction against the program participant
- Rental assistance payment by **PROVIDER** (for 1 month's rent) to **LESSOR** guarantees program participant residency for an additional 30 days.

Depending upon final approval of the program participant into the program, **PROVIDER** agrees to pay Rental Assistance and/or Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services Financial Assistance directly to **LESSOR** as per lease agreement made with (program participant) and **LESSOR** until such time that the Assistance has ended.

Anticipated Assistance:

Assistance Description	Amount
Application Fee	
Security Deposit	
Utility Deposit ¹⁰	
Rent in Arrears	
First Month's Rent	
Second Month's Rent	
Third Month's Rent	
Medium-Term Rental Assistance	
Last Month's Rent	
Anticipated Total Assistance:	

ESG-RAA (10/2018)

⁹ https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HomelessDefEligibility%20_SHP_SPC_ESG.pdf

¹⁰ for utilities-included units only



By signing below, **AGENCY** agrees to make the specified assistance payment(s) on behalf of the program participant to **LESSOR**. **LESSOR**, by signing below, agrees to accept payments from AGENCY for the program participant specified above.

PROVIDER	(Provider Name)	LESSOR	(Landlord/Owner Name)	
	(Mailing Address)		(Landlord/Owner Mailing Address)	
	(City, State, ZIP)		(Landlord/Owner City, State, ZIP)	
		F		
	(Signature)		(Signature)	
	(Printed Name and Title of Signatory)		(Printed Name and Title of Signatory)	
	(Printed Name and Title of Signatory)		(Printed Name and Title of Signatory)	

PURPOSE

The ESG-RAA is the Provider's documentation that the landlord agrees to accept payment from the Provider on behalf of the Participant.

This form is required only during the initial month of Rental Assistance provided to a Participant. A copy of this form, and all documents supporting the information on this form, should be maintained by the Provider in the Program Participant's case file.

COMPLETION

Introduction: The Provider should complete this form. When completed, the Provider and landlord must both sign the form.

(MM/DD/YYYY): Enter the date of the Rental Assistance Agreement in MM/DD/YYYY format

(Apartment Complex or Landlord): Enter the name of the apartment complex or landlord

(ESG Sub-Recipient): Enter the name of the Provider

(program participant): Enter the name of the Participant. For confidentiality purposes, DVSPs may leave the name blank and enter the HMIS (or comparable) number.

Application Fee: If an Application Fee is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid

Security Deposit: If a Security Deposit is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid

Utility Deposit: If a Utility Deposit is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid

Rent in Arrears: If Rental Assistance is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid for Rent in Arrears

First Month's Rent: If Rental Assistance is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid for the first month's rent

Second Month's Rent: If Rental Assistance is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid for the second month's rent

Third Month's Rent: If Rental Assistance is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid for the third month's rent

Medium-Term Rental Assistance: If Rental Assistance is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the total amount being paid for all months beyond the third month

Last Month's Rent: If Last Month's rent is being paid to the landlord by the Provider, enter the amount being paid

ESG-RAA INSTRUCTIONS (10/2018)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ESG-RAA RENTAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT

Page 2 of 2

Anticipated Total Assistance: Enter the total amount being paid to the landlord by the Provider under the terms

of this Rental Assistance Agreement

Participant Name(s): Enter the Program Participant's name. For confidentiality purposes, DVSPs may

leave the name blank and enter only the HMIS (or comparable) number.

HMIS #: Enter the Program Participant's Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) number.

Domestic Violence Services Providers (DVSP) will enter the number assigned by the comparable data

system used instead of HMIS.

(Provider Name): Enter the name of the Provider

(Mailing Address): Enter the mailing address of the Provider

(City, State, ZIP): Enter the City, State and ZIP code of the Provider

(Landlord/Owner Name): Enter the name of the Landlord or Owner

(Landlord/Owner Mailing Address): Enter the mailing address of the Landlord or Owner

(Landlord/Owner City, State, ZIP): Enter the City, State and ZIP code of the Landlord or Owner

ROUTING

This form must be submitted with the first ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for Rental Assistance provided to this Participant. This form is not required when reimbursement is requested for this same Participant

in subsequent months. Place a copy of this form in the Participant's file.

Alternate formats (large print, audio tape, etc.) will be provided upon request.

Tr-rrs PP GI: rs rrrrr:rrrrorrp [J_)r [_f:r:T B [fi l'r1/

PURPOSE

The ESG-IL is the Provider's documentation <u>for invoicing purposes</u> that the Participant's household income did not exceed HUD's ESG income limits at the time assistance or services were provided. This form must be completed and submitted with an ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for Homelessness Prevention assistance or services provided to the Program Participant.

A copy of this form, and all documents supporting the information on this form, should be maintained by the Provider in the Program Participant's case file.

COMPLETION

Introduction: The Provider should complete this form. When completed, the Provider should thoroughly review all information before indicating that the Participant's household does not exceed the applicable ESG income threshold.

Participant Name: Enter the Program Participant's name. For confidentiality purposes, Domestic Violence Services Providers (DVSPs) may leave the name blank and enter only the HMIS (or comparable) number.

HMIS #: Enter the Program Participant's Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) number. Domestic Violence Services Providers (DVSP) will enter the number assigned by the comparable data system used instead of HMIS.

County Name: Enter the Name of the county in which the unit is located. Delete all counties from this form that are not in the Provider's service area. This form should be a one-page form.

Household Size: Enter the total number of persons in the Participant's household.

Household Income: Enter the total household income for all persons in the Participant's household.

In April of 2016, HUD's CPD Income Eligibility Calculator was expanded to include ESG. To correctly calculate the Participant's household income, go to the CPD Income Eligibility Calculator page at https://www.hudexchange.info/incomecalculator/ and follow the instructions.

ESG Income Threshold: Enter the Income Limit for the correct household size in the county in which the household is located.

Does this Participant / Household qualify for...: Indicate whether the household qualifies for assistance under the ESG Homelessness Prevention component.

Approved by: The Caseworker should print and sign the form.

ROUTING

This form must be submitted with the first ESG invoice that requests reimbursement for HP assistance or services provided to this Participant. This form is not required when reimbursement is requested for this same Participant in subsequent months. Place a copy of this form in the Participant's file.

Alternate formats (large print, audio tape, etc.) will be provided upon request.

T[-{[§ P/iGI: [§ rrfTl:|'rrro|'r/i [J_)r [_f:r:T

Appendix 7 -ESG COVID 50% Income Limits	



COVID-19 HP

COUSER	FFY2022 MHI	1-Person Household	2-person Household	3-Person Household	4-Person Household	5-Person Household	6-Person Household	7-Person Household
Arkansas County	\$63,600	\$21,300	\$24,350	\$27,400	\$30,400	\$32,850	\$35,300	\$37,700
Ashley County	\$62,200	\$21,200	\$24,200	\$27,250	\$30,250	\$32,700	\$35,100	\$37,550
Baxter County	\$56,300	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Benton County	\$83,700	\$29,300	\$33,500	\$37,700	\$41,850	\$45,200	\$48,550	\$51,900
Boone County	\$58,900	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Bradley County	\$59,000	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Calhoun County	\$66,200	\$21,600	\$24,650	\$27,750	\$30,800	\$33,300	\$35,750	\$38,200
Carroll County	\$64,100	\$22,050	\$25,200	\$28,350	\$31,450	\$34,000	\$36,500	\$39,000
Chicot County	\$47,200	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Clark County	\$65,300	\$22,900	\$26,150	\$29,400	\$32,650	\$35,300	\$37,900	\$40,500
Clay County	\$56,300	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Cleburne County	\$61,200	\$21,450	\$24,500	\$27,550	\$30,600	\$33,050	\$35,500	\$37,950
Cleveland County	\$60,000	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Columbia County	\$53,400	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Conway County	\$61,200	\$21,450	\$24,500	\$27,550	\$30,600	\$33,050	\$35,500	\$37,950
Craighead County	\$71,100	\$23,100	\$26,400	\$29,700	\$32,950	\$35,600	\$38,250	\$40,900
Crawford County	\$62,600	\$21,250	\$24,300	\$27,350	\$30,350	\$32,800	\$35,250	\$37,650
Crittenden County	\$77,300	\$26,900	\$30,750	\$34,600	\$38,400	\$41,500	\$44,550	\$47,650

COVID-19 HP

Cross County	\$67,800	\$22,300	\$25,450	\$28,650	\$31,800	\$34,350	\$36,900	\$39,450
Dallas County	\$57,500	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Desha County	\$46,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Drew County	\$70,600	\$22,150	\$25,300	\$28,450	\$31,600	\$34,150	\$36,700	\$39,200
Faulkner County	\$78,700	\$27,550	\$31,500	\$35,450	\$39,350	\$42,500	\$45,650	\$48,800
Franklin County	\$57,800	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Fulton County	\$51,300	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Garland County	\$60,500	\$21,200	\$24,200	\$27,250	\$30,250	\$32,700	\$35,100	\$37,550
Grant County	\$72,300	\$25,100	\$28,650	\$32,250	\$35,800	\$38,700	\$41,550	\$44,400
Greene County	\$63,000	\$22,050	\$25,200	\$28,350	\$31,500	\$34,050	\$36,550	\$39,100
Hempstead County	\$59,400	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Hot Spring County	\$60,200	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Howard County	\$56,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Independence County	\$60,600	\$21,250	\$24,250	\$27,300	\$30,300	\$32,750	\$35,150	\$37,600
Izard County	\$60,400	\$21,150	\$24,200	\$27,200	\$30,200	\$32,650	\$35,050	\$37,450
Jackson County	\$49,200	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Jefferson County	\$60,000	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Johnson County	\$51,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Lafayette County	\$48,600	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Lawrence County	\$56,600	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350

COVID-19 HP

Lee County	\$56,000	\$21,000	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Lincoln County	\$60,000	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Little River County	\$66,500	\$22,400	\$25,600	\$28,800	\$32,000	\$34,600	\$37,150	\$39,700
Logan County	\$54,800	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Lonoke County	\$78,700	\$27,550	\$31,500	\$35,450	\$39,350	\$42,500	\$45,650	\$48,800
Madison County	\$83,700	\$29,300	\$33,500	\$37,700	\$41,850	\$45,200	\$48,550	\$51,900
Marion County	\$51,700	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Miller County	\$71,300	\$23,850	\$27,250	\$30,650	\$34,050	\$36,800	\$39,500	\$42,250
Mississippi County	\$54,500	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Monroe County	\$56,300	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Montgomery County	\$52,600	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Nevada County	\$50,400	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Newton County	\$57,400	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Ouachita County	\$53,800	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Perry County	\$78,700	\$27,550	\$31,500	\$35,450	\$39,350	\$42,500	\$45,650	\$48,800
Phillips County	\$43,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Pike County	\$57,600	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Poinsett County	\$55,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Polk County	\$49,300	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Pope County	\$60,900	\$21,200	\$24,200	\$27,250	\$30,250	\$32,700	\$35,100	\$37,550

COVID-19 HP

Prairie County	\$62,300	\$21,200	\$24,200	\$27,250	\$30,250	\$32,700	\$35,100	\$37,550
Pulaski County	\$78,700	\$27,550	\$31,500	\$35,450	\$39,350	\$42,500	\$45,650	\$48,800
Randolph County	\$49,600	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
St. Francis County	\$47,900	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Saline County	\$78,700	\$27,550	\$31,500	\$35,450	\$39350	\$42,500	\$45,650	\$48,800
Scott County	\$52,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Searcy County	\$48,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Sebastian County	\$62,600	\$21,250	\$24,300	\$27,350	\$30,350	\$32,800	\$35,250	\$37,650
Sevier County	\$61,200	\$21,450	\$24,500	\$27,550	\$30,600	\$33,050	\$35,500	\$37,950
Sharp County	\$49,100	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Stone County	\$55,000	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Union County	\$62,400	\$21,850	\$25,000	\$28,100	\$31,200	\$33,700	\$36,200	\$38,700
Van Buren County	\$53,500	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Washington County	\$83,700	\$29,300	\$33,500	\$37,700	\$41,850	\$45,200	\$48,550	\$51,900
White County	\$60,900	\$21,350	\$24,400	\$27,450	\$30,450	\$32,900	\$35,350	\$37,800
Woodruff County	\$59,000	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
Yell County	\$56,500	\$21,100	\$24,100	\$27,100	\$30,100	\$32,550	\$34,950	\$37,350
	-							

These are 50% Income Limits, calculated with high and low housing cost adjustments, state non-metropolitan minimum but without the increases for poverty guidelines in the Section 8 Extremely Low Family Incomes.

Under the ESG program, income eligibility is based on the HUD income limits in effect at the time of income verification.

Income eligibility is not based on HUD income limits that correspond with the grant year under which the ESG funds were awarded.

COVID-19 HP

	<u> </u>	Household Size		Participant Name
	3	Household Income		HMIS #
	ŀ	ESG Income Threshold		County Name
NO	YES	es this Participant / Household Qualify for ESG?	D	
	:	Approved By:		
Provider Printed Name	Pi			
Provider Signature				

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/il.html#2022 data

Appendix 8- Reimbursement Request A	ttestation Statement

Arkansas Department of Human Services DCO/Office of Community Grants Services

Emergency Solutions Grant COVID-19 Reimbursement Request Attestation Statement

I acknowledge by signing this form that my agency has not requested nor received reimbursement from any other sources retroactive to March 31, 2020 for expenses that are being submitted to the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) COVID-19 funding authorized under the CARES Act.

I understand that if found in violation with the terms and conditions of the ESG Reimbursement Request, it may result in demand for repayment, termination of the sub-grant, or even referral for fraud investigation.

The terms of this acknowledgment are for the duration of the ESG COVID-19 Grant.

Signature of Agency Representative

Agency Name

Date

Appendix 9 - Documentation Required Form For Invoicing	

DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR ESG INVOICING

FORMS TO USE	*******		ESG-ELIG	ESG-FMR	ESG-RR	ESG-HAB	ESG-LBP		ESG-RAA	ESG-IL	
		1		FMR	Rent Reas.	Min Hab	Lead-Based	Lease	Rental Assist	Income Limits	Eviction
	Proof of	Proof of	Client		Standard	Standards	Paint		Agreement	meome Linnes	or
	Cost	Payment	Eligibility	24 CFR	24 CFR	24 CFR	24 CFR	24 CFR	24 CFR	24 CFR 576.103	Shut-off
		•		576.106(d)	576.106(d)	576.403(c)	576.403(a)	576.106(g)	576.106(e)		Notice
Street Outreach											
Street Outreach	✓	✓	✓								
Emorganou Chaltar											
Emergency Shelter			7								
Operations	V	√	<u> </u>								
Essential Services	√	✓	_								
Rehab/Renovation	✓	✓									
RRH										-	
Rental Assistance	√	\checkmark	\checkmark	✓	✓	\checkmark	✓	✓	✓		
Financial Assistance	✓	✓	✓			✓	✓	✓	✓		
Services	✓	✓	✓			✓	✓			_	
		•	•	-			•	-			
HP											
Rental Assistance	√	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Financial Assistance	✓	✓	✓			✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Services	✓	✓	✓			✓	✓			✓	✓

Rental Assistance is Short-Term Rent, Medium-Term Rent or Rent-in-Arrears

Financial Assistance is Moving Costs, Application Fees, Security Deposit, Last Month's Rent, Utiliuty Depost and Utility Payments

Services are Housing Search/Placement, Mediation, Legal Services, Credit Repair, and Housing Stability Case Management